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March 29, 2013

The Honorable Elia Germani
Chairman Public Utilities Commission
89 Jefferson Boulevard

Warwick, RI 02888

RE: Providence Water Supply Board - General Rate Filing
Dear Chairman Germani:

The Providence Water Supply Board (Providence Water), pursuant to the Rules of
Practice and Procedure, herewith files a general rate filing to collect additional
revenues of $14,619,888 which is an overall increase of 24.3%, effective April 29,
2013.

Included in this filing is pre-filed testimony of the witnesses to be presented by
Providence Water, along with supporting schedules and work papers, as required by
the Commission’s Rules. We have complied with all requirements of Part Two of the
Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure. We have also included the
information required by Rhode Island General Laws 39-3-12.1 as an exhibit to my
testimony.

Copies of this filing are being furnished today by first class mail, postage prepaid, to
the following affected parties to our system:

City Clerk - Providence

City Clerk - East Providence
City Clerk - Cranston

City Clerk - Warwick

Town Clerk - North Providence
Town Clerk - Johnston

Town Clerk - Lincoln

Town Clerk - Smithfield

Kent County Water Authority
Greenville Water District

East Smithfield Water District
Bristol County Water Authority

Copies have also been provided to the Rhode Island Water Resources Board and the
Rhode Island Attorney General’s Office. All other wholesale customers and Fire
Chiefs will be notified by mail of the potential effect this filing may have on their
rate.



Honorable Elia Germani, Chairman
March 29, 2013
Page 2

A copy of our proposed Notice to be published in the Providence Journal is enclosed as required by
Commission Rule 2.4. We will coordinate with the Commission Clerk to finalize the document prior to
publication.

Michael R. McElroy, Esq., will be representing Providence Water as our legal counsel in this matter. He

may be contacted at 21 Dryden Lane, Post Office Box 6721, Providence, RI 02940-6721.

Respectfully,
Providence Water Supply Board

Boyce Spinelli
General Manager

s:\chalkall\regulato\budget2013\ratefiling2013\letteroftransmittal.docx






IN RE:

STATE OF RHODE ISLAND AND PROVIDENCE PLANTATIONS
PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
General Rate Filing of March 29, 2013

NOTICE OF CHANGE IN RATE SCHEDULES

Pursuant to R.I.G.L §39-3-11, and in accordance with Rule1.9 and Part Two of the Rules of
Practice and Procedure of the Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission (Commission), the
Providence Water Supply Board (Providence Water), hereby gives notice of its proposed change

in rates.

The proposed changes are contained in the written testimony and exhibits attached hereto and
incorporated herein. The new rates will become effective April 29, 2013 and will collect an
additional $14,619,888 in revenue to support Providence Water’s cost of service.

1.

Providence Water Supply Board is a Board authorized by the City Charter of the City
of Providence, Rhode Island with its principal place of business at 552 Academy
Avenue, Providence, Rhode Island.

Correspondence for Providence Water in this General rate filing should be addressed
to Mr. Boyce Spinelli, General Manager, Providence Water Supply Board, 552
Academy Ave, Providence R.I. 02908 and to Mr. Michael R. McElroy, Esq., P.O.
Box 6721, Providence, RI 02940-6721

In accordance with the appropriate Rules and Regulations pursuant to R.I.G.L §39-3-
11, the accompanying documents contain data, information and testimony in support
of said request;

Also submitted herewith are documents and statements in conformance with R.1.G.L
§39-3-12.1;

This document meets the requirements of Rule 1.5 of the Rules of Practice and
Procedure for the Commission.



Providence Water Supply Board,
By its Attomey,

Mes (A

Michael R. McElfoy, ¢
Providence Water Supply Bo
21 Dryden Lane, P.O. Box 6721
Providence, RI 02940-6721
401-351-4100

401-351-5696 (fax)
Michael@McElroviawoffice.com

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that a true copy of the within was hand delivered to
the Public Utilities Commission, 89 Jefferson Boulevard, R1 02888 and mailed via
first class mail to the Department of Attorney General, 150 South Main Street,

Providence, RI 02903 on the 29 day of March, 2013.

| WM/}AL , WJ(/ y

Mary L. Defgnag- ! 4
Providenc upply Board




STATE OF RHODE ISLAND AND PROVIDENCE PLANTATIONS
PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

IN RE: PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
Docket No.

NOTICE OF FILING AND CHANGE IN RATE SCHEDULE

Pursuant to the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission
(Commission), the Providence Water Supply Board (Providence Water) filed with the Commission an application to
revise its rates effective April 29, 2013.

The proposed rates will collect an additional $14,619,888 in revenues, which represents an overall increase
of approximately 24.3%. As proposed, the impact on a residential customer bill with an annual consumption of 100
HCF will be an increase of $72.98 per year from $322.16 to $395.14 or a 22.7% increase. The rate impact on other
retail customers and fire service customers will vary based on customer class and consumption levels. The impact
on wholesale customers will be a rate increase of 32.8%.

While the new rates are proposed to become effective April 29, 2013, the Commission can suspend the
rates for up to eight months from the proposed effective date. No rate change will take effect until the Commission
has conducted a full investigation and hearing on the proposal. The Commission will publish a notice of the hearing
dates when they are scheduled. Ratepayers may comment on the proposed rate increase at that time.

A copy of the proposed filing is on file at Providence Water’s office at 552 Academy Avenue, Providence,
Rhode Island, and at the office of the Commission, 89 Jefferson Boulevard, Warwick, Rhode Island, and may be
reviewed by the public during normal business hours.

A copy of this filing was also provided to the Cities of Providence, East Providence, Cranston and Warwick;
the Towns of North Providence, Johnston, Lincoln and Smithfield; the Kent County Water Authority, Greenville
Water District, East Smithfield Water District and Bristol County Water Authority.

Correspondence for Providence Water in this rate filing should be addressed to Mr. Boyce Spinelli, General
Manager, Providence Water Supply Board, 552 Academy Avenue, Providence, Rhode Island, 02908 and to Mr.
Michael R. McElroy, Esq., Post Office Box 6721, Providence, Rhode Island, 02940-6721.

Providence Water Supply Board
552 Academy Avenue
Providence, RI 02908
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EXISTING TARIFFS

PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD TARIFF

Replaces Tariff

October 5, 2009

Effective: April 27, 2010 & November 1, 2011

RI Public Utilities Commission Docket No. 4061 & 4287

TARIFF SCHEDULES

Schedule
A Service Charges — Retail
B Metered Sales — Retail
C Bulk Sales to Public Authorities for Resale
D Public Fire Protection
E Private Fire Service

F Miscellaneous Charges



EXISTING TARIFFS
SCHEDULE A

Providence Water Supply Board
Service Charges
Retail

Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission Docket No. 4287

Effective: November 1, 2011
Applicability
Applicable to all metered customers for industrial, commercial and residential use, exclusive of fire
service connection, in the Providence Water Supply Board service area.

Rates
For each service connected to the Providence Water Supply Board mains, the following customer
service charges shall apply:

Size of Meter Quarterly Monthly
5/8" $18.34 $10.82
3/4 19.47 11.19

1 22.85 12.32
1% 27.39 13.83
2 39.77 17.97
3 131.15 48.42
4 164.98 59.70
6 243.95 86.02
8 334.19 116.11
10 415.97 143.37
12 497.76 170.63

However, for each Providence Water service connected in the City of Providence the following
additional Fire Protection service charge shall apply to Providence ratepayers:

Size of Meter Quarterly Monthly
5/8" $3.08 $1.03
3/4 4.62 1.54

1 11.54 3.85
1% 30.77 10.26
2 73.86 24.62
3 200.04 66.68
4 338.52 112.84
6 692.43 230.81
8 1,046.34 348.78
10 1,600.29 533.43
12 2,646.63 882.21

Terms of Payment

All customer service charges may be billed quarterly or monthly and are due and payable when
rendered. Interest at a rate of 1% per month will be charged on unpaid account balances over 30
days from due date.




EXISTING TARIFFS
SCHEDULE B
Providence Water Supply Board
Metered Sales
Retail
Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission Docket No. 4061

Effective: April 27,2010

Applicability
Applicable to all general metered water service in the Providence Water Supply Board service area.

Rates
For all quantities used, except for bulk sales to public authorities for resale, the following rates per
HCEF shall apply:

Quarterly Accounts
Residential $2.488
Commercial $2.390
Industrial $2.346
Monthly Accounts
Residential $2.488
Commercial $2.390
Industrial $2.346

Terms of Payment

All metered sales bills are rendered in arrears quarterly or monthly at the option of the Providence
Water Supply Board and are due and payable in full when rendered.

Interest at a rate of 1% per month will be charged on unpaid account balances over 30 days from due
date.



EXISTING TARIFFS
SCHEDULE C

Providence Water Supply Board
Bulk Sales to Public Authorities for Resale

Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission Docket No. 4061

Effective: April 27,2010

Applicability
Applicable to all public authorities in the Providence Water Supply Board service area purchasing
water for resale.

Rates-Volume Charge

$1,697.21 per million gallons, or
$1.269514 per HCF

Terms of Payment

All bills for bulk sales are rendered monthly in arrears and are due and payable in full when
rendered.

Interest at a rate of 1% per month will be charged on unpaid account balances over 30 days from due
date



EXISTING TARIFFS
SCHEDULE D

Providence Water Supply Board
Public Fire Protection

Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission Docket No. 4287
Effective: November 1, 2011
Applicability

Applicable to all service to public fire hydrants in the Providence Water Supply Board service area.

Rates
For each hydrant: $339.33

For each hydrant in Providence, as allowed by statute: $0

Terms of Payment

All bills for public fire service are rendered quarterly and are due and payable in full when rendered.

Interest at a rate of 1% per month will be charged on unpaid account balances over 30 days from due
date.



EXISTING TARIFFS
SCHEDULE E

Providence Water Supply Board
Private Fire Service

Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission Docket No. 4061

Effective: April 27, 2010
Applicability
Applicable for service to private fire protection appliances owned and maintained by the customer in
the Providence Water Supply service area.

Rates

For each fire service connection to the Providence Water Supply Board mains, the following charges
shall apply:

Size of Service Quarterly
3/4" $19.67
1 23.31
1% 28.70
2 42.63
4 _ 182.72
6 295.45
8 443.93
10 613.33
12 816.53
16 1,340.64

Terms of Payment

All bills for private fire services are rendered quarterly and are due and payable in full when
rendered.

Interest at a rate of 1% per month will be charged on unpaid account balances over 30 days from due
date.



EXISTING TARIFFS

SCHEDULE F
PROVIDENCE WATER
TERMS & CONDITIONS
SERVICE FEE SCHEDULE
(effective April 27, 2010)
page 1 of 2

NOTE: All applicants must complete financial arrangements prior to services being rendered.
Applicants are responsible for obtaining and paying for all permits and any additional fees.

SERVICE FEE

PHOTOCOPYING

Distribution Sheet $ 3.00/copy

Letter or Legal Size Document $ .15/copy
LIEN CERTIFICATE $ 6.00
RETURNED CHECK FEE $ 20.00
PLAN CHECKING/WATER AVAILABILITY REVIEW $ 57.00/hour
EASEMENT/ABANDONMENT REQUEST $ 50.00/hour
FIRE HYDRANT FLOW TEST $ 118.00
NEW WATER SERVICE INSTALLATION - BASIC

1" Water Service $1,673.00

1 2" Water Service 2,596.00

2" Water Service 2,931.00

4"  Water Service 3,700.00

6" Water Service 3,998.00

NEW WATER SERVICE INSTALLATION - SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES

All services greater than 6" will be installed and charged on a time and materials basis, consistent
with the methodology used in computing the above service charges. Notwithstanding the above
schedule, any sites where special circumstances may be encountered (ie. ledge, special fittings,
routing around other utilities) will also be charged on a time and materials basis. The average time
rate for all manpower and equipment (including overhead) averages approximately $400/hr.

PAVEMENT/SIDEWALK RESTORATION CHARGES
Applicants are responsible for all actual road and/or sidewalk restoration charges, as the charge

varies with the size of the excavation and the pavement thickness. For illustrative purposes, on
average, the charge is approximately $300 for payment restoration and $75 for sidewalk.



EXISTING TARIFFS

SCHEDULE F
PROVIDENCE WATER
TERMS & CONDITIONS
SERVICE FEE SCHEDULE
(effective April 27 ,2010)
page 2 of 2

SERVICE FEE

POLICE DETAILS

If the work being performed presents a safety hazard and it is necessary to employ police details for
traffic control, the applicant will be responsible for such costs at the then current rate of the
respective Town or City. For illustrative purposes, the hourly detail rates as of January 31, 2007 are
as follows:

Cranston $37.11
Johnston 40.05
North Providence 37.00
Providence 42.92

NEW WATER METER INSTALLATION - INCLUDING ERT

5/8" Meter $ 184.00
3/4" Meter 230.00
1" Meter 266.00
1 %2 Meter 457.00
2" Meter 545.00

All meters greater than 2" will be charged on an actual time and materials basis.

NEW ERT - ALL METER SIZES $ 109.00

(Applies only to existing ERT’s that are lost, stolen, or damaged by customers. There is no charge to
retro-fit an existing meter to AMR technology.)

SERVICE SHUTOFF FEE § 64.00
SERVICE RESTORATION FEE § 43.00
SPECIAL REQUESTS FOR SERVICES NOT Billed at actual
LISTED ABOVE THAT DO NOT BENEFIT Cost plus overhead

ALL CUSTOMERS Rates in effect



PROPOSED TARIFFS

PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD TARIFF

Replaces Tariff
Oectober5,2009
Apr 27 20H0-& Neovember 1204

Effective: AprH 27 20H0-& November 152011
April 29, 2013

RI Public Utilities Commission Docket No.

TARIFF SCHEDULES

Schedule
A Service Charges — Retail
B Metered Sales — Retail
C Bulk Sales to Public Authorities for Resale
D Public Fire Protection
E Private Fire Service

F Miscellaneous Charges



PROPOSED TARIFFS
SCHEDULE A

Providence Water Supply Board
Service Charges
Retail

Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission Docket No.

Effective: Scoventber 2011
April 29,2013

Applicability
Applicable to all metered customers for industrial, commercial and residential use, exclusive of fire
service connection, in the Providence Water Supply Board service area.

Rates
For each service connected to the Providence Water Supply Board mains, the following customer
service charges shall apply:

Size of Meter Ouarterly Monthly
5/8" 31834 £10-82 $7.47
3/4 1947 HA9 7.88
1 2285 1232 9.12
1% 2729 1383 10.78
2 3997 7197 15.33
3 13115 4842 48.82
4 16498 5070 61.22
6 243.95 8602 90.16
8 33419 He1t 123.24
10 41597 +H4337 153.22
12 49776 17063 183.19

However, for each Providence Water service connected in the City of Providence the following
additional Fire Protection service charge shall apply to Providence ratepayers:

Size of Meter Ouarterky Monthly
5/8" 5208 $1.03 $1.47
3/4 —4-62 154 2:21
1 —H-54 335 5.51
1% 3057 1826 14.69
2 7336 2462 35.25
3 20004 6663 95.45
4 333852 +H284 161.53
6 -692.43 230.81 330.39
8 104634 34838 499.25
10 160029 53343 763.56
12 2564663 38221 1,262.81

Terms of Payment

All customer service charges are billed guarterty-or monthly and are due and payable when rendered.
Interest at a rate of 1% per month will be charged on unpaid account balances over 30 days from due
date.




PROPOSED TARIFFS
SCHEDULE B

Providence Water Supply Board
Metered Sales
Retail

Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission Docket No.

Effective: April 272610
April 29,2013

Applicability
Applicable to all general metered water service in the Providence Water Supply Board service area.

Rates

For all quantities used, except for bulk sales to public authorities for resale, the following rates per
HCF shall apply:

Quarterly-Aeccounts
Copsprercial——$2.30()
Industrial ———$2-346

Monthly Accounts
Residential S $3.055
Commercial $2:390 $2.922
Industrial $2346- $2.864

Terms of Payment

All metered sales bills are rendered in arrears guarterty-or monthly and are due and payable in full
when rendered.

Interest at a rate of 1% per month will be charged on unpaid account balances over 30 days from due
date.



PROPOSED TARIFFS
SCHEDULE C

Providence Water Supply Board
Bulk Sales to Public Authorities for Resale

Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission Docket No.

Effective: April 27,2010
April 29, 2013

Applicability
Applicable to all public authorities in the Providence Water Supply Board service area purchasing
water for resale.

Rates-Volume Charge

$4569721 $2,253.99 per million gallons, or
$1-269514 $1.685988 per HCF

Terms of Payment

All bills for bulk sales are rendered monthly in arrears and are due and payable in full when
rendered.

Interest at a rate of 1% per month will be charged on unpaid account balances over 30 days from due
date



PROPOSED TARIFFS
SCHEDULE D

Providence Water Supply Board
Public Fire Protection

Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission Docket No.

Effective: Nevember1; 2011
April 29, 2013

Applicability
Applicable to all service to public fire hydrants in the Providence Water Supply Board service area.

Rates

For each hydrant: $339:33
$486.84

or each hydrant in Providence, as allowed by statute: $0

Terms of Payment

All bills for public fire service are rendered quarterly and are due and payable in full when rendered.

Interest at a rate of 1% per month will be charged on unpaid account balances over 30 days from due
date.



PROPOSED TARIFFS
SCHEDULE E

Providence Water Supply Board
Private Fire Service

Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission Docket No.

Effective: April 27,2610
April 29, 2013

Applicability
Applicable for service to private fire protection appliances owned and maintained by the customer in
the Providence Water Supply service area.

Rates
For each fire service connection to the Providence Water Supply Board mains, the following charges
shall apply:

Size of Service Quarterhy Monthly
3/4" 5067 $ 7.88
1 23231 9.12
1% 2870 10.78
2 As2 15.33
4 Je2 2 61.22
6 20545 90.16
8 443.93 123.24
10 61333 153.22
12 81653 183.19
16 2O 243.15

Terms of Payment

All bills for private fire services are rendered guarterty monthly and are due and payable in full
when rendered.

Interest at a rate of 1% per month will be charged on unpaid account balances over 30 days from due
date.



PROPOSED TARIFFS
SCHEDULE F
PROVIDENCE WATER
TERMS & CONDITIONS
SERVICE FEE SCHEDULE
(effective April 29, 2013)
page 1 of 2

NOTE: All applicants must complete financial arrangements prior to services being rendered.
Applicants are responsible for obtaining and paying for all permits and any additional fees.

SERVICE FEE

PHOTOCOPYING

Distribution Sheet $§ 3.00/copy

Letter or Legal Size Document $ .15/copy
LIEN CERTIFICATE $ 6.00
RETURNED CHECK FEE $ 20.00
PLAN CHECKING/WATER AVAILABILITY REVIEW $ 57.00/hour
EASEMENT/ABANDONMENT REQUEST $ 50.00/hour
FIRE HYDRANT FLOW TEST $ 118.00
NEW WATER SERVICE INSTALLATION - BASIC

1" Water Service $1,673.00

1 15" Water Service 2,596.00

2" Water Service 2,931.00

4" Water Service 3,700.00

6" Water Service 3,998.00

NEW WATER SERVICE INSTALLATION - SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES

All services greater than 6" will be installed and charged on a time and materials basis, consistent
with the methodology used in computing the above service charges. Notwithstanding the above
schedule, any sites where special circumstances may be encountered (ie. ledge, special fittings,
routing around other utilities) will also be charged on a time and materials basis. The average time
rate for all manpower and equipment (including overhead) averages approximately $400/hr.

PAVEMENT/SIDEWALK RESTORATION CHARGES

Applicants are responsible for all actual road and/or sidewalk restoration charges, as the charge
varies with the size of the excavation and the pavement thickness. For illustrative purposes, on
average, the charge is approximately $300 for payment restoration and $75 for sidewalk.



PROPOSED TARIFFS

SCHEDULE F
PROVIDENCE WATER
TERMS & CONDITIONS
SERVICE FEE SCHEDULE
(effective April 29 , 2013)
page 2 of 2

SERVICE FEE

POLICE DETAILS

If the work being performed presents a safety hazard and it is necessary to employ police details for
traffic control, the applicant will be responsible for such costs at the then current rate of the
respective Town or City. For illustrative purposes, the hourly detail rates as of February 20, 2013 are
as follows:

Cranston $40.55
Johnston 4436
North Providence 41.62
Providence 52.89

NEW WATER METER INSTALLATION - INCLUDING ERT

5/8" Meter $ 184.00
3/4" Meter 230.00
1" Meter 266.00
1 15” Meter 457.00
2"  Meter 545.00

All meters greater than 2" will be charged on an actual time and materials basis.

NEW ERT - ALL METER SIZES $ 109.00

(Applies only to existing ERT’s that are lost, stolen, or damaged by customers. There is no charge to
retro-fit an existing meter to AMR technology.)

SERVICE SHUTOFF FEE § 64.00
SERVICE RESTORATION FEE § 43.00
SPECIAL REQUESTS FOR SERVICES NOT Billed at actual
LISTED ABOVE THAT DO NOT BENEFIT Cost plus overhead

ALL CUSTOMERS Rates in effect



PROPOSED TARIFFS

PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD TARIFF

Replaces Tariff
April 27,2010 & November 01, 2011

Effective: April 29, 2013

RI Public Utilities Commission Docket No.

TARIFF SCHEDULES
Schedule
A Service Charges — Retail
B Metered Sales — Retail
C Bulk Sales to Public Authorities for Resale
D Public Fire Protection
E Private Fire Service

F Miscellaneous Charges



PROPOSED TARIFFS
SCHEDULE A

Providence Water Supply Board
Service Charges
Retail

Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission Docket No.

Effective: April 29, 2013
Applicability
Applicable to all metered customers for industrial, commercial and residential use, exclusive of fire
service connection, in the Providence Water Supply Board service area.

Rates

For each service connected to the Providence Water Supply Board mains, the following customer
service charges shall apply:

Size of Meter Monthly
5/8" $ 7.47
3/4 7.88

1 9.12
1% 10.78
2 1533
3 48.82
4 61.22
6 90.16
8 123.24
10 153.22
12 183.19

However, for each Providence Water service connected in the City of Providence the following
additional Fire Protection service charge shall apply to Providence ratepayers:

Size of Meter Monthly
5/8" $ 147
3/4 2.21

1 5.51
1% 14.69
2 35.25
3 95.45
4 161.53
6 330.39
8 499.25
10 763.56
12 1,262.81

Terms of Payment

All customer service charges are billed monthly and are due and payable when rendered. Interest at
a rate of 1% per month will be charged on unpaid account balances over 30 days from due date.




PROPOSED TARIFFS
SCHEDULE B
Providence Water Supply Board
Metered Sales
Retail
Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission Docket No.

Effective: April 29, 2013

Applicability
Applicable to all general metered water service in the Providence Water Supply Board service area.

Rates

For all quantities used, except for bulk sales to public authorities for resale, the following rates per
HCEF shall apply:

Monthly Accounts
Residential $3.055
Commercial $2.922
Industrial $2.864

Terms of Payment

All metered sales bills are rendered in arrears monthly and are due and payable in full when
rendered.

Interest at a rate of 1% per month will be charged on unpaid account balances over 30 days from due
date.



PROPOSED TARIFFS
SCHEDULE C

Providence Water Supply Board
Bulk Sales to Public Authorities for Resale

Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission Docket No.

Effective: April 29, 2013

Applicability
Applicable to all public authorities in the Providence Water Supply Board service area purchasing
water for resale.

Rates-Volume Charge

$2,253.99 per million gallons, or
$1.685988 per HCF

Terms of Payment

All bills for bulk sales are rendered monthly in arrears and are due and payable in full when
rendered.

Interest at a rate of 1% per month will be charged on unpaid account balances over 30 days from due
date



PROPOSED TARIFFS
SCHEDULE D

Providence Water Supply Board
Public Fire Protection

Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission Docket No.
Effective: April 29, 2013
Applicability

Applicable to all service to public fire hydrants in the Providence Water Supply Board service area.

Rates
For each hydrant: $486.84

For each hydrant in Providence, as allowed by statute: $0

Terms of Payment

All bills for public fire service are rendered quarterly and are due and payable in full when rendered.

Interest at a rate of 1% per month will be charged on unpaid account balances over 30 days from due
date.



PROPOSED TARIFFS
SCHEDULE E

Providence Water Supply Board
Private Fire Service

Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission Docket No.

Effective: April 29, 2013
Applicability
Applicable for service to private fire protection appliances owned and maintained by the customer in
the Providence Water Supply service area.

Rates

For each fire service connection to the Providence Water Supply Board mains, the following charges
shall apply:

Size of Service Monthly
3/4" $ 7.88
1 9.12
1% 10.78
2 15.33
4 61.22
6 90.16
8 123.24
10 153.22
12 183.19
16 243.15

Terms of Payment

All bills for private fire services are rendered monthly and are due and payable in full when rendered.

Interest at a rate of 1% per month will be charged on unpaid account balances over 30 days from due
date.



PROPOSED TARIFFS

SCHEDULE F
PROVIDENCE WATER
TERMS & CONDITIONS
SERVICE FEE SCHEDULE
(effective April 29, 2013)
page 1 of 2

NOTE: All applicants must complete financial arrangements prior to services being rendered.
Applicants are responsible for obtaining and paying for all permits and any additional fees.

SERVICE FEE

PHOTOCOPYING

Distribution Sheet § 3.00/copy

Letter or Legal Size Document $ .15/copy
LIEN CERTIFICATE $ 6.00
RETURNED CHECK FEE $ 20.00
PLAN CHECKING/WATER AVAILABILITY REVIEW $ 57.00/hour
EASEMENT/ABANDONMENT REQUEST $ 50.00/hour
FIRE HYDRANT FLOW TEST $ 118.00
NEW WATER SERVICE INSTALLATION - BASIC

1" Water Service $1,673.00

1 5" Water Service 2,596.00

2" Water Service 2,931.00

4"  Water Service 3,700.00

6" Water Service 3,998.00

NEW WATER SERVICE INSTALLATION - SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES

All services greater than 6" will be installed and charged on a time and materials basis, consistent
with the methodology used in computing the above service charges. Notwithstanding the above
schedule, any sites where special circumstances may be encountered (ie. ledge, special fittings,
routing around other utilities) will also be charged on a time and materials basis. The average time
rate for all manpower and equipment (including overhead) averages approximately $400/hr.

PAVEMENT/SIDEWALK RESTORATION CHARGES

Applicants are responsible for all actual road and/or sidewalk restoration charges, as the charge
varies with the size of the excavation and the pavement thickness. For illustrative purposes, on
average, the charge is approximately $300 for payment restoration and $75 for sidewalk.



PROPOSED TARIFFS

SCHEDULE F
PROVIDENCE WATER
TERMS & CONDITIONS
SERVICE FEE SCHEDULE
(effective April 29 , 2013)
page 2 of 2

SERVICE FEE

POLICE DETAILS

If the work being performed presents a safety hazard and it is necessary to employ police details for
traffic control, the applicant will be responsible for such costs at the then current rate of the
respective Town or City. For illustrative purposes, the hourly detail rates as of February 20, 2013 are
as follows:

Cranston $40.55
Johnston 44,36
North Providence 41.62
Providence 52.89

NEW WATER METER INSTALLATION - INCLUDING ERT

5/8" Meter $ 184.00
3/4" Meter 230.00
1" Meter 266.00
1 2 Meter 457.00
2" Meter 545.00

All meters greater than 2" will be charged on an actual time and materials basis.

NEW ERT - ALL METER SIZES $ 109.00

(Applies only to existing ERT’s that are lost, stolen, or damaged by customers. There is no charge to
retro-fit an existing meter to AMR technology.)

SERVICE SHUTOFF FEE § 64.00
SERVICE RESTORATION FEE § 43.00
SPECIAL REQUESTS FOR SERVICES NOT Billed at actual
LISTED ABOVE THAT DO NOT BENEFIT Cost plus overhead

ALL CUSTOMERS Rates in effect
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STATE OF RHODE ISLAND PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
DOCKET NO.
ATTESTATION UNDER RULE 2.7

OF THE RULES OF PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE
OF THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

I, Jeanne Bondarevskis, in conformance with Rule 2.7 of
the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Public
Utilities Commission, hereby attest that the financial
data provided to our consultant and used by him in the
rate case to present rate base, cost of service and
other financial statements, purports to reflect the
books of Providence Water and the results of operations
and is true and correct to the best of my knowledge,
information, and belief. All changes and differences
between the books and test year data and any changes in
the manner of recording said data during the test year

have been expressly noted.

(e Lo srosation

eanne Bondarevksis

STATE OF RHODE ISLAND
PROVIDENCE COUNTY

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 52;2<3f March,
2013.

Notary Phb
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Providence

<Waler

552 Academy Avenue
Providence, RI 02908

401-521-6300

www.provwater.com

The Hon. Angel Taveras
Mayor

Boyce Spinelli
General Manager

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Brett P. Smiley
Chairman

Joseph D. Cataldi
Vice Chairman

Michael L.. Pearis
Ex-Officio

Michael A. Solomon
City Council President

Michael J. Correia
City Councilman

Andy M. Andujar
Member

Joan S. Badway
Member

Carissa R. Richard
Secretary

William E. O'Gara, Esq.
Legal Advisor

Member

Rhode Island Water Works Assn.
New England Water Works Assn.
American Water Works Assn.
Water Research Foundation

An EPA WaterSense Partner

Only Tap Water Delivers

March 29, 2013

City Clerk

City of Providence
City Hall
Providence, RI 02903

RE: Providence Water Supply Board - General Rate Filing

Dear Sir or Madam:

Pursuant to the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the RI Public Utilities
Commission, the Providence Water Supply Board has filed the enclosed
document with the Public Utilities Commission in support of its
application for a rate increase.

Respectfully,

Providence Water Supply Board
Boyce Spinelli
General Manager

~

Py o]

by: Mary L. Dei gnan-White
Senior Manager of Regulatory

MDW

Enclosure
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552 Academy Avenue
Providence, Rl 02908

401-521-6300

www.provwater.com

The Hon. Angel Taveras
Mayor

Boyce Spinelli
General Manager

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Brett P. Smiley
Chairman

Joseph D. Cataldi
Vice Chairman

Michael L.. Pearis
Ex-Officio

Michael A. Solomon
City Council President

Michael J. Correia
City Councilman

Andy M. Andujar
Member

Joan S. Badway
Member

Carissa R. Richard
Secretary

William E. O’Gara, Esq.
Legal Advisor

Member

Rhode Island Water Works Assn.
New England Water Works Assn.
American Water Works Assn.
Water Research Foundation

An EPA WaterSense Partner

Only Tap Water Delivers

March 29, 2013

City Clerk

City of East Providence
145 Taunton Avenue

East Providence, RI 02914

RE: Providence Water Supply Board - General Rate Filing

Dear Sir or Madam:

Pursuant to the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the RI Public Utilities
Commission, the Providence Water Supply Board has filed the enclosed
document with the Public Utilities Commission in support of its
application for a rate increase.

Respectfully,
Providence Water Supply Board

Boyce Spinelli
General Manager

d% Z— <Z >)@( Jm-
by: Mary L. Deignan-White
Senior Manager of Regulatory

Whide

MDW

Enclosure
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www.provwater.com

The Hon. Angel Taveras
Mayor

Boyce Spinelli
General Manager

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Brett P. Smiley
Chairman

Joseph D. Cataldi
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Ex-Officio
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Secretary
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Legal Advisor

Rhode Island Water Works Assn.
New England Water Works Assn.
American Water Works Assn.
Water Research Foundation

An EPA WaterSense Partner

Only Tap Water Delivers

March 29, 2013

City Clerk

City of Cranston
869 Park Avenue
Cranston, RI 02910

RE: Providence Water Supply Board - General Rate Filing

Dear Sir or Madam:

Pursuant to the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the RI Public Utilities
Commission, the Providence Water Supply Board has filed the enclosed
document with the Public Utilities Commission in support of its
application for a rate increase.

Respectfully,
Providence Water Supply Board

Boyce Spinelli
General Manager

)47% z,}fm-a//ﬁ\

by: Mary L. Deignan-White
Senior Manager of Regulatory

MDW

Enclosure



Providence
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552 Academy Avenue
Providence, Rl 02908

401-521-6300

www.provwater.com

The Hon. Angel Taveras
Mayor

Boyce Spinelli
General Manager

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Brett P. Smiley
Chairman

Joseph D. Cataldi
Vice Chairman

Michael L. Pearis
Ex-Officio

Michael A. Solomon
City Council President

Michael J. Correia
City Councilman

Andy M. Andujar
Member

Joan S. Badway
Member

Carissa R. Richard
Secretary

William E. O’'Gara, Esq.
Legal Advisor

Rhode Island Water Works Assn.
New England Water Works Assn.
American Water Works Assn.
Water Research Foundation

An EPA WaterSense Partner

Only Tap Water Delivers

March 29, 2013

City Clerk

City of Warwick
3275 Post Road
Warwick, RI 02886

RE: Providence Water Supply Board - General Rate Filing

Dear Sir or Madam:
Pursuant to the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the RI Public Utilities
Commission, the Providence Water Supply Board has filed the enclosed

document with the Public Utilities Commission in support of its
application for a rate increase.

Respectfully,
Providence Water Supply Board

Boyce Spinelli
General Manager

M%L,KBMM_UAJ»—

by: Mary L. Deignan-White
Senior Manager of Regulatory

MDW

Enclosure
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Providence, Rl 02908
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Mayor
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Chairman
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City Council President
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City Councilman
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New England Water Works Assn.
American Water Works Assn.
Water Research Foundation

An EPA WaterSense Partner
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March 29, 2013

Town Clerk

Town of North Providence
2008 Smith Street

North Providence, RI 02911

RE: Providence Water Supply Board - General Rate Filing

Dear Sir or Madam:

Pursuant to the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the RI Public Utilities
Commission, the Providence Water Supply Board has filed the enclosed
document with the Public Utilities Commission in support of its
application for a rate increase.

Respectfully,
Providence Water Supply Board

Boyce Spinelli
General Manager

sap A B 1o

by: Mary L. Deignan-White
Senior Manager of Regulatory

MDW

Enclosure
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The Hon. Angel Taveras
Mayor

Boyce Spinelli
General Manager

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Brett P. Smiley
Chairman
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Member
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Legal Advisor

Member
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New England Water Works Assn.
American Water Works Assn.
Water Research Foundation

An EPA WaterSense Partner

Only Tap Water Delivers

March 29, 2013

Town Clerk

Town of Johnston
1385 Hartford Avenue
Johnston , R1 02919

RE: Providence Water Supply Board - General Rate Filing

Dear Sir or Madam;:

Pursuant to the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the RI Public Utilities
Commission, the Providence Water Supply Board has filed the enclosed
document with the Public Utilities Commission in support of its
application for a rate increase.

Respectfully,
Providence Water Supply Board

Boyce Spinelli
General Manager

bgos L g b B

by: Mary L. Deignan-White
Senior Manager of Regulatory

MDW

Enclosure
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Mayor
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General Manager
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Chairman
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City Councilman

Andy M. Andujar
Member

Joan S. Badway
Member

Carissa R. Richard
Secretary

William E. O'Gara, Esq.
Legal Advisor

Member

Rhode Island Water Works Assn.
New England Water Works Assn.
American Water Works Assn.
Water Research Foundation

An EPA WaterSense Partner

Only Tap Water Delivers

March 29, 2013

Town Clerk

Town of Lincoln
100 Old River Road
Lincoln , RI 02865

RE: Providence Water Supply Board - General Rate Filing

Dear Sir or Madam:

Pursuant to the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the RI Public Utilities
Commission, the Providence Water Supply Board has filed the enclosed
document with the Public Utilities Commission in support of its
application for a rate increase.

Respectfully,
Providence Water Supply Board

Boyce Spinelli
General Manager

W) L Dy il

by: Mary L. Deignan-White
Senior Manager of Regulatory

MDW

Enclosure
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March 29, 2013

Town Clerk

Town of Smithfield
64 Farnum Pike
Smithfield, RI 02917

RE: Providence Water Supply Board - General Rate Filing

Dear Sir or Madam:

Pursuant to the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the RI Public Utilities
Commission, the Providence Water Supply Board has filed the enclosed
document with the Public Utilities Commission in support of its
application for a rate increase.

Respectfully,
Providence Water Supply Board

Boyce Spinelli
General Manager

by: Mary L. Deignan-White
Senior Manager of Regulatory

MDW

Enclosure
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March 29, 2013

Mr. Timothy Brown

General Manager

Kent County Water Authority
P.O. Box 192

West Warwick, RI 02893

RE: Providence Water Supply Board - General Rate Filing

Dear Mr. Brown:

Pursuant to the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the RI Public Utilities
Commission, the Providence Water Supply Board has filed the enclosed
document with the Public Utilities Commission in support of its
application for a rate increase.

Respectfully,
Providence Water Supply Board

Boyce Spinelli
General Manager

)?%L'é%ﬁ%—w&“

by: Mary L. Deignan-White
Senior Manager of Regulatory

MDW

Enclosure
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March 29, 2013

District Superintendent
Greenville Water District
P.O. Box 595
Greenville, RI 02828

RE: Providence Water Supply Board - General Rate Filing

Dear Sir or Madam;:

Pursuant to the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the RI Public Utilities
Commission, the Providence Water Supply Board has filed the enclosed
document with the Public Utilities Commission in support of its
application for a rate increase.

Respectfully,
Providence Water Supply Board

Boyce Spinelli
General Manager

%L'éﬂf"“—[‘%ﬁ—

by: Mary L. Deignan-White
Senior Manager of Regulatory

MDW

Enclosure
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March 29, 2013

East Smithfield Water District
307 Waterman Avenue

Smithfield, R1 02917

RE: Providence Water Supply Board - General Rate Filing

Dear Sir or Madam:

Pursuant to the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the RI Public Utilities
Commission, the Providence Water Supply Board has filed the enclosed
document with the Public Utilities Commission in support of its

application for a rate increase.

Respectfully,

Providence Water Supply Board

Boyce Spinelli
General Manager
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by: Mary L. Deignan-White
Senior Manager of Regulatory

MDW

Enclosure
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March 29, 2013

Mrs. Pamela Marchand

Bristol County Water Authority
450 Child Street

Warren, RI 02885

RE: Providence Water Supply Board - General Rate Filing

Dear Mrs. Marchand:

Pursuant to the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the RI Public Utilities
Commission, the Providence Water Supply Board has filed the enclosed
document with the Public Utilities Commission in support of its
application for a rate increase.

Respectfully,
Providence Water Supply Board

Boyce Spinelli
General Manager

et b

by: Mary L. Deignan-White
Senior Manager of Regulatory

jd L —

MDW

Enclosure
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March 29, 2013

Mr. Kenneth Burke

RI Water Resources Board
1 Capitol Hill

Third Floor

Providence, RI 02908

RE: Providence Water Supply Board - General Rate Filing

Dear Mr. Kenneth Burke:

Pursuant to the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the RI Public Utilities
Commission, the Providence Water Supply Board has filed the enclosed
document with the Public Utilities Commission in support of its
application for a rate increase.

Respectfully,

Providence Water Supply Board
Boyce Spinelli

General Manager

by: Mary L. Deignan-White
Senior Manager of Regulatory

MDW

Enclosure
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March 29, 2013

Mr. Leo Wold, Esq.

Office of the Attorney General
150 South Main Street
Providence, RI 02903

RE: Providence Water Supply Board - General Rate Filing

Dear Mr. Wold:

Pursuant to the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the RI Public Utilities
Commission, the Providence Water Supply Board has filed the enclosed
document with the Public Utilities Commission in support of its
application for a rate increase.

Respectfully,
Providence Water Supply Board

Boyce Spinelli
General Manager

P |

by: Mary L. Deignan-White
Senior Manager of Regulatory

MDW

Enclosure
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PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
TESTIMONY OF
BOYCE SPINELLI

Please state your full name and title?
Boyce Spinelli, General Manager of the Providence Water

Supply Board (Providence Water).

How long have you been employed by Providence Water?

I have been employed by Providence Water since January
2001, or approximately 12 years. Prior to that, I was
Director of Finance for the City of Providence and
served as Ex-officio member of the Providence Water

Supply Board for 7 years.

Please explain your duties and responsibilities?
As General Manager I am responsible for managing the
day to day activities of the Providence Water Supply

Board.

Would you please state your education, background and
professional associations?

I have a BS degree in Economics from Lemoyne College in
Syracuse, New York. I spent several vyears in the
private sector, working in the Controller’s office for
Ford Motor Co., and General Electric, before switching
to the public sector with stints as Finance Director
for three municipalities including the City of

Providence.

Have you testified before a regulatory agency with
respect to operating matters or rates either in your
current position or in your previous positions?

Yes, I have testified before the RI Public Utilities
Commission and Division in several dockets for

Providence water.
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PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
TESTIMONY OF
BOYCE SPINELLI

What is the purpose of this filing?

Providence Water is requesting a general rate increase,
to secure sufficient funds to provide for adequate
operation and maintenance of the water system that
provides safe and potable drinking water to the

majority of the State of Rhode Island.

How was this filing prepared?

Providence Water has engaged the services of Raftelis
Financial Consultants to prepare the Cost of Service,
Rate Design, and a Conservation Rate proposal, pursuant
to the Commission’s prior Order. As 1n previous
filings, Providence Water’s internal staff has provided

and overseen the preparation of the filing documents.

Has the Board approved this filing?
Yes, at a special Board Meeting 1in March 2013, the
Board approved an increase not to exceed 25%, and

authorized staff to submit the filing.

Why is a revenue increase needed by Providence Water at
this time?

This rate filing is the first request for additional
revenue 1in four years. Out of every dollar of
additional revenue requested in this filing, almost
eighty cents 1is earmarked for water quality efforts
including Infrastructure Replacement (IFR),
Chemical/Sludge Maintenance and a Unidirectional
Flushing (UDF) program. Only about twenty cents of
each dollar requested is needed for operational

increases.
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PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
TESTIMONY OF
BOYCE SPINELLI

Please explain what you mean by Water Quality efforts?
For a more detailed explanation, please refer to the

testimony of Paul J. Gadoury.

For the past several vyears, Providence Water has
experienced an increasing number of complaints of
discolored or red water. To a large extent this
problem is greatly exacerbated by the large quantity of
unlined cast iron mains in our distribution system.
Today over 50% (550 miles) of our water mains are
unlined cast iron. Since about 1950, unlined cast iron
mains have not been installed by most water utilities
because the interior of cast iron and ductile water
mains began to be coated with a protective cement

lining.

In addition to the red water complaints Providence
Water has also been in non-compliance with the EPA lead

‘action level’ since 2006.

Providence Water has been working very closely with The
RI Department of Health and nationally recognized water
industry experts to study this critical problem. As a
result of this collaboration and study, The RI
Department of Health has directed Providence Water to
submit a revised Infrastructure Replacement Program
incorporating a much more aggressive timetable for
rehabilitating unlined cast iron mains. In addition
Providence Water was directed to submit a much more
aggressive plan and timetable for implementing and
conducting a system wide Unidirectional Flushing (UDF)

Program.
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This rate filing incorporates both mandated

initiatives.

For what will the additional revenue be utilized?
For a more detailed explanation, please refer to the

testimony of Harold Smith of Raftelis.

The major areas of increase include:

$8 million increase in restricted IFR funding, $2
million of which 1s for project costs and debt
service; $6 million of which 1s specifically
dedicated to rehabilitation of water mains.

$3 million for restricted Chemicals & Sludge
Maintenance expense as explained by Paul J.
Gadoury.

50:5 for implementation of a Unidirectional
Flushing Program, also fully explained by Mr.
Gadoury.

The above three items account for $11.5 million (79%)
of the $14.6 million increase requested by Providence
Water. $2.7 million (18.5%) is for increases 1in
salaries, fringes, property taxes, rate case expense,

inflation, and reserves.

Finally, Providence Water has included a request for
$0.4 million to <cover the cost of switching from
quarterly billing to monthly billing. There are many
advantages to monthly billing but if conservation rates
are 1instituted, monthly billing becomes absolutely

essential.
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Has Providence Water revised its’ DOH approved
Infrastructure Replacement Plan?

Yes we have. We have been working with the RI
Department of Health and have re-submitted our IFR plan
to specifically address their concerns regarding
increasing our efforts toward main replacements.
Providence Water was planning to request a $2 million
dollar increase in IFR in this filing, but have had to
dramatically increase our request in order to comply
with DOH’s Orders and to address the serious water
quality issues being experienced by some of our

customers.

Please also see the testimony of Paul Gadoury on this

matter.

Do you have any additional items to address?

Yes. As I mentioned earlier in my testimony,
Providence Water has included funding for monthly
billing. We have done this for several reasons.
First, as our bills increase, we are aware that a
quarterly bill can be difficult for a customer to pay
in one amount. Breaking our bills into monthly amounts
will make it much more affordable for our customers.
Second, monthly billing will be necessary if Providence
Water implements conservation rates. Third, we are
hopeful that this will provide better cash flow and
reduce our receivables. We have provided Raftelis with
the estimated cost of issuing monthly bills and have
asked that they design rates to reflect this change.
Have you evaluated the Conservation Rate proposal

prepared by Raftelis?
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Yes I have reviewed The Conservation Rate Proposal

prepared by Raftelis.

My main concern regarding the implementation of
conservation rates 1is the question of simultaneously
switching from quarterly billing to monthly billing and

implementing conservation rates.

I feel the ideal situation is to switch to monthly
billing first, to allow customers to become accustomed
to receiving bills and comparing consumption and dollar
amounts on a monthly basis. In this manner customers
will be comparing “apples with apples” so to speak
instead of comparing monthly consumption and dollar

amounts with previously issued quarterly bills.

Also the conversion from quarterly billing to monthly
billing could have a conservation effect in and of

itself.

For these reasons I feel that conservation rates would
be more effective if introduced after the introduction
of monthly billing, and the effectiveness could much
more easily be evaluated by introducing only one

variable at a time.

Is there any proposed change to the net operating

revenue percentage?

o

No. Providence Water has kept this at the 3

previously approved by the Commission.
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When is the proposed rate relief needed to take effect?
Providence Water 1s requesting that the Commission
authorize the new rates effective 30 days from this
filing. We hope to have the new rates implemented for
billing on or before January 1, 2014. The rate year is

the calendar year ending December 31; 2014.

Have you attached the tables required by R.I.G.L. § 39-
3-12.1?

Yes, they are attached as an Exhibit to my testimony.

Does this conclude your testimony?

Yes.



EXHIBIT 1

TABLE A
STATUS OF FISCAL PLANT

The physical plant of the Providence Water Supply Board consists of five (5) feeder reservoirs
(Ponagansett, Moswansicut, Barden, Westconnaug, and Regulating) and the main Scituate
Reservoir, a 100% surface water supply with a total storage capacity of 41,268 million gallons; a
filtration plant with associated sedimentation basins, and chemical storage and feeding
equipment, and a filtration capacity of 144 million gallons per day; a transmission and
distribution system, consisting of more than 950 miles of transmission and distribution mains,
which vary in size from 6 inch to 66 inches, and consisting primarily of pipe constructed of cast
and ductile iron, asbestos-cement and concrete; four (4) completely enclosed distribution
reservoirs with a total capacity of 115.3 million gallons; one (1) prestressed concrete cylindrical
tank with a total capacity of 3.5 million gallons; four (4) distribution system pumping stations;
one (1) raw water booster pumping station; six (6) pressure boosting pumping stations; eleven
(11) emergency power systems, eight (8) driven by diesel engines and three (3) driven by gas
engines; and administrative and maintenance garage facilities.



EXHIBIT 1

TABLE B
MAINTENANCE POLICY

It is the policy of the Water Supply Board to maintain its system in proper operating condition
in accordance with all accepted standards. Leaks and damaged valves, hydrants and other
appurtenances of the distribution system are repaired and/or replaced expeditiously. Physical
plant maintenance is performed in a planned manner by permanent crews when possible.
Outside contractors are used to supplement forces when needed. Distribution pipes (most
recent main extensions) were installed through fiscal reporting year ending June 30, 2012.
Total pipe installed (and or replaced) in the last ten (10) year period is as follows:

Year Feet Miles
2003 11,424 2.16
2004 7,606 1.44
2005 11,400 2.16
2006 13,388 2.54
2007 8,122 1.54
2008 7,868 1.49
2009 8,176 1.55
2010 7,873 1.49
2011 44,489 8.43
2012 19,499 3.69

Total 139,845 26.49



EXHIBIT 1

TABLE C
WATER TREATMENT METHODS AND CHEMICALS USED

During the last fiscal reporting period, (July 2011 through the end of June 2012), Providence
Water utilized the following five (5) chemicals during the treatment process, as follows:

1. Ferric Sulfate- Used to coagulate and settle out micro-organisms and particles that cause
color and turbidity,

Lime- Used to adjust PH

Chlorine-Used as a disinfectant

Fluoride- Used to prevent dental cavities

CO2- Used to increase the buffering capacity of the finished water

Mok ke

The quantities and costs of the chemicals used based on purification plant reporting data for
dosing of specified water are as follows:

Chemical Quantity Used Unit Cost Total Cost *
Ferric Sulfate 1,113,678.69 gals $ 1.40 $ 1,580,879
Lime 2,838.65 tons $ 212.45 621,118
Chlorine 173.30 tons $ 800.00 139,822
Fluoride 56,902.83 gals $ 287 171,663
Cco2 506 gals $106.40 58,792

Total $2,572,273

*Total cost does not compute exactly from figures shown, as it includes audit adjustments.



EXHIBIT 1

TABLE D
POLICY RELATED TO EXPANSION AND RENOVATION

It is the policy of the Board to assure that the system will continue to provide service to all
existing customers. Technical evaluations are made to determine future needs so that required
expansion can proceed in a timely manner in order to assure that new customers can be
provided with the same level of service without any degradation of service to existing
customers. Providence Water has an Infrastructure Replacement Program that addresses the
renovation or replacement of major system components. A Capital Improvement Program is
also in place to address the implementation of new capital assets. Funding has been provided
through rates established by the Public Utilities Commission. The programs are administrated
though restricted funds for which semi-annual reports are provided to the Commission.

In fiscal year ending June 30, 2012, Providence Water invested approximately $21.0 million into
the infrastructure replacements and capital improvements to the system.



Total Quantity of
Water Pumped

Sales to Ultimate Consumers
Sales for Resale

Sub-total Sales
Water used by Company

Non-accounted for Water

% of Total Water Pumped

TABLE E

PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
NON-ACCOUNTED FOR WATER

Hundred Cubic Feet

EXHIBIT 1

FYE 2008 FYE 2009 FYE 2010 FYE 2011 FYE 2012
32,841,364 30,359,158 29,127,099 30,126,778 30,120,067
14,630,493 14,036,583 13,139,251 13,221,050 13,081,259
14,517,901 13,207,713 12,415,678 13.525.669 13,213,689
29,148,394 27,244,296 25,554,929 26,746,719 26,294,948

0 0 0 0 0
3,692,970 3,114,862 3,572,170 3,380,059 3,825,119
11.24% 10.26% 12.26% 11.22% 12.70%
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PAUL GADOURY
Q. Please state your name and your position?
A. Paul Gadoury, former and recently retired Director of

Engineering for the Providence Water Supply Board
(Providence Water), now serving in a consulting capacity

for the agency.

Q. Would you please state your education and professional
background?

A. I graduated Magna Cum Laude from the University of
Rhode Island in 1971 with a Bachelor’s Degree in Civil
Engineering. I am a Registered Professional Engineer in
both the State of Rhode Island and the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts. I was employed by Providence Water for 38
years, having served as Director of Engineering for 20

years before retiring in June 2012.

Q. What issues are being addressed in this testimony?

A. Addressed 1in this testimony will be the following
issues impacting this rate filing: 1) The impact of water
quality issues within the Providence Water system; 2)
Providence Water’s institution of a unidirectional water
main flushing program; 3) The need for expanding water main
replacement/relining work within the IFR Program; 4)
Updated costs associated with water treatment chemicals and

treatment residuals (i.e. sludge) handling and disposal.
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1) Water Quality Issues

Q. Please describe the referenced water quality issues
impacting the system.

A. Under the Federal Lead and Copper Rule enacted in 1991,
a water system 1is deemed to have exceeded a defined lead
“action level” 1if more than 10% of its samples that are
tested for lead exceed a concentration of 15 parts per
billion (ppb). Up wuntil 2006, Providence Water had
remained below this action level, albeit at times by a very
small margin. With the objective of achieving a greater
safety margin, Providence Water commissioned a study in
2004 to determine whether additional treatment measures
could be taken to further reduce lead levels in the system.
The recommendation from the study was that Providence Water
should lower the pH of its water from the existing level of
10.2 down to a pH of 9.7, based on the theory that lead is
less soluble at this pH. In response, in November 2005,

Providence Water gradually lowered the pH to this level.

The consensus among experts was that it would take some
time before the projected benefits from the pH change would
be realized. 1In 2006, for the first time, Providence Water
fell out of compliance with the regulatory action level for
lead concentration in the water, and has continued to
remain out of compliance since that time. As a result of

this non-compliance, it became regulatorily required by EPA
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regulations that Providence Water replace a minimum of
1,792 (7%) of its 25,600 lead water services annually,
until compliance was achieved. Providence Water has been
replacing lead services at this rate since 2007, at a cost

of approximately $8 million per year.

Concerns arose over the persistence of the lead levels in
the water, the questionable benefits provided by partial
lead service replacements, and the difficulty of finding a
proven solution to the persistent lead level issue. In
June 2012, the Rhode Island Department of Health (HEALTH) ,
in concert with the EPA, agreed to enter into a Consent
Agreement with Providence Water which granted a stay of the
lead service replacement requirement for 2012. Attached as

Exhibit PG-1 is a copy of the Consent Agreement.

As part of this agreement, HEALTH and EPA in turn required
that Providence Water convene a panel of national water
quality experts, to include regulators, water
professionals, and members of academia, to recommend
studies and/or treatment modifications with the objective
of reducing lead levels in the water. In compliance with
the terms of the agreement, Providence Water assembled a
panel of experts meeting HEALTH’s approval. Following a
series of meetings, on August 31, 2012, the Panel issued a

report of its findings and recommendations.
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Q. Please provide a summary of the Expert Panel’s
findings and recommendations.

A. Some of the more significant findings in the Panel’s
report were:

a) Contrary to what had been expected, the lowered pH of
the water contributed to an increase in lead levels.

b) The lowered pH of the water also contributed to
higher levels of iron in the water, with an increase
in customer “red water” complaints.

c) Increased difficulty was being encountered in
maintaining chlorine disinfectant residual levels
within the distribution system.

d) Experimental studies indicated that microbiological
films on pipe walls could be contributing to elevated
iron and lead levels.

e) Findings suggested that the higher iron
concentrations could be playing a significant role in
the increased lead levels at customer taps.

f) Notice was made of the high quantity of unlined cast

iron mains in the Providence Water system.

Based on 1its findings, the Panel recommended expanded
sampling measures within the system and suggested that some
future study work for enhanced corrosion control options
may be considered. Related to this rate filing, the Panel

also recommended the following actions:
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a) Return to pre-2005 treatment conditions with a
finished water pH of 10.2, along with a sampling and
monitoring program to evaluate the water quality
impact of this change.

b) Distribution system cleanup effort through
development and implementation of a system-wide
unidirectional pipe flushing program.

c) Sequenced and prioritized replacement/relining of

unlined cast iron pipes.

Q. Has the Expert Panel’s report been submitted to HEALTH?
A. Yes. The report was submitted to HEALTH on August 31,
2012. A response to the findings and recommendations of
the report was received from HEALTH by letter dated
December 6, 2012. A copy of HEALTH’s response is attached
as Exhibit PG-2. Included in the response was an approval
to return to the higher pre-2005 pH levels, the requirement
for development and implementation of an aggressive
unidirectional flushing program, and the requirement that
Providence Water submit to HEALTH a revised Infrastructure
Replacement Program with an expanded program for the
replacement/relining of the system’s unlined cast diron

mains.

In 1light of the findings and 4issues identified above,
Providence Water has now taken steps to return its water

treatment regime back to that which prevailed prior to the
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2005 treatment change. Initiatives are also underway to
improve the condition of the distribution system through
the development and implementation of a new system-wide
unidirectional flushing program, and an expansion of our
program for relining and replacing unlined cast iron water

mains within the system.

2) Unidirectional Flushing Program

Q. Please describe what is meant by a Unidirectional
Flushing Program.

A. Unidirectional flushing (UDF) is a programmed approach
to flushing out water mains throughout the system by
flowing hydrants in such a manner as to achieve pipe
velocities conducive to flushing out loose sediments,
deposits, and films from the interior of water mains. In
this type of flushing operation, various control valves
within the piping system need to be strategically closed or
opened during each flushing sequence in order to direct
water along certain specific flow paths to maximize flow
velocities, induce water flows from a single pipe direction
only, and to strategically sequence water flows solely

through previously flushed pipe segments.

In a large and extensively looped system such as Providence
Water’s, this type of operation entails extensive planning,

design, and field work involving thousands of sequenced
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flushing operations, each requiring carefully planned and

executed valving configurations and hydrant operations.

The operation of a system-wide wunidirectional flushing
program in a system the size of Providence Water i1is an
extremely labor-intensive, ongoing effort which requires
equipment and personnel specifically dedicated to that
function. In addition to the planning and design effort,
the operation entails extensive field work. Besides the
actual flushing operations requiring valve operation and
the flowing of hydrants, extensive and labor-intensive
advance field preparatory work is required. Advance
reconnaissance of targeted flushing areas must be done,
valves and hydrants checked for both accessibility and
operability, buried valves excavated and exposed,
malfunctioning valves and hydrants repaired, evaluations
made of affected properties, and notification and
coordination of efforts made with customers and local

authorities.

Q. What steps is Providence Water taking towards the
development of this program?

A. Providence Water has not historically had a systematic
system-wide flushing program. Flushing has predominantly
been 1in response to specific discolored water complaints.
Flushing in these instances has been a combination of low

flow flushing through hydrants to purge discolored water
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from mains, or higher velocity flushing in an attempt to
generate cleaning action. In order to assist 1in the
development of a unidirectional flushing program,
Providence Water has replaced its hydraulic modeling
software with a new modeling software package which
includes a unidirectional flushing module that assists in
the analysis and development of unidirectional flushing
sequences. To facilitate this, Providence Water is also
presently engaged in expanding its hydraulic model piping
network, which has heretofore primarily included only the
more hydraulically significant water mains 12-inches and
larger in size, to now include all water mains within the

system.

Providence Water has also entered into a contract with an
outside <consulting firm for services related to the
development and implementation of a large-scale UDF effort,
and has identified equipment and manpower needs for

implementation of the program.

Q. Is Providence Water seeking additional revenue to
support the program?

A. Yes. Providence Water is utilizing consultant services
for assistance in the planning and development of the
program flushing sequences, and their experienced field
personnel services. These consultants are being used in

conjunction with our in-house personnel in the initial
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stages of the program. Following proper familiarization
and experience with the program, it is Providence Water’s

intent to continue the program with in-house personnel.

Unidirectional flushing of the system will remain an
ongoing operational program. The initial development of
the UDF program will be funded from Capital, and the
implementation of the program will be funded on an ongoing
basis from Operations. The projected operational costs
requested in this filing for implementation of this program
are 1dentified in Exhibit HJS-2 prepared by Harold Smith.
Equipment, including two new trucks needed for the program,
is being purchased with existing funds from Providence

Water’s Equipment Fund supported by current revenues.

3) Water Main Replacement/Relining

Q. Please describe the issue of unlined cast iron mains
relative to the Providence Water system.

A. Like many older water systems, a large portion of the
Providence Water transmission and distribution system 1is
comprised of unlined cast iron water mains, where the
interior surface of the main is essentially bare cast iron
with no protective coating. As systems aged, these mains
experienced internal corrosion problems. Beginning around
1950, the interior of cast iron and ductile water mains

began to be coated with a protective cement lining.
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Almost all of the water mains installed in the Providence
Water system up until 1950 were of the unlined variety, and
today approximately 55% or 550 miles of the water mains in
the Providence Water system are of unlined cast iron, with
40% of these having been installed in the 1800s. These
mains have become very problematical in terms of both water
quality, and delivery capacity. From a water gquality
standpoint, the interior rusted surfaces of these mains
contribute to numerous instances of rusty, discolored water
being delivered to customers. With the continued aging of
the system, this problem has become substantially worse in
recent years, with customer complaints now being received
on a virtually daily basis. Recent evidence also suggests
that the higher iron levels are contributory to Providence
Water’s lead level problem. Tuberculation within the mains
is the buildup of deposits of iron-based growths along the
pipe walls resulting from corrosion activity. Corrosion
and tuberculation on the interior walls of Providence
Water’s iron pipes has resulted in rusty water and has also
significantly reduced the internal diameter of many of
these mains, resulting in poor flow capacity and

degradation of available fire flow protection.

10
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Q. How has Providence Water addressed the problem with

these water mains to date?

A. Rehabilitation of water mains has Dbeen part of
Providence Water’s IFR program since its inception in 1996.
Due, however, to the more pressing funding demands
associated with the significant rehabilitation work that
was needed to other major critical components of the system
including the treatment plant, pump stations, reservoirs,
and aqueducts, rehabilitative work on water mains has by
necessity been of a relatively modest scale, with 22 miles
to date of water mains having been replaced or relined over
this period. Now that many of our major critical projects
have been completed, more of our IFR funds can now be
dedicated to main replacement work in upcoming years, as
shown in Providence Water’s most recent formal approved IFR

plan submitted to HEALTH in 2010.

More recently, Providence Water has taken advantage of the
Consent Agreement with HEALTH granting a stay of lead
service replacement requirements for 2012 by redirecting
these funds to water main replacement/relining work.
Providence Water has also recently received Division
approval to borrow $33 million to further accelerate the

water main work.

11
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Q. In light of the identified water quality problems,
what are Providence Water’s plans at this point relative to

the rehabilitation of its distribution system?

A. As discussed above, Providence Water’s unlined cast
iron mains have become increasingly problematical. Iron
levels in the system have risen, complaints of rusty,
discolored water have increased, and evidence suggests that
higher iron levels could be a significant contributor to
Providence Water’s lead problem. It is clear at this point
that increased resources need to be devoted to water main
rehabilitation. This 1is illustrated 1in Exhibit PG-3.
Shown is Providence Water’s projected water main
replacement/relining work in accordance with its currently
approved 2010 IFR plan, with the further assumption of
previously earmarked lead replacement funds being
reallocated to water main work. Under that scenario, only
7% of Providence Water’s unlined mains would be addressed
in the first 5 years of the program, and only 40% after the

20™ year of the program.

Consistent with the needs of the system and HEALTH’s
directive to expand the scope of main replacement work,
Providence Water is seeking an additional $6 million in
annual rate revenue to be dedicated for water main
replacement/relining work. This is above and beyond the

planned $2 million IFR revenue request presented in this

12
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filing for <continuance of the program’s funding in
accordance with the Expenditure Plan of Providence Water’s
presently approved IFR Plan. Exhibit PG-4 illustrates the
expanded scope of projected water main work under this

requested funding scenario.

4) Treatment Chemicals and Residuals

Q. Please discuss Providence Water’s treatment chemicals
and residuals handling needs.

A. Providence Water uses significant quantities of four
chemicals 1in 1its treatment process: ferric sulfate as a
coagulant to promote settling of impurities, quicklime for
pH adjustment and corrosion control, chlorine for
disinfection, and hydrofluorosilicic acid (liquid fluoride)
to aid in the prevention of dental caries. Carbon dioxide
injection into the water has also been employed for past

couple of years, but is being phased out.

Another significant process associated with the chemical
treatment is that of the handling and disposal of treatment
residuals, sometimes otherwise called sludge. These
residuals are the accumulation of the material settled out
of the water in the treatment process in the plant’s large
sedimentation basins. This material includes large amounts
of settled ferric coagulant along with attached impurities

settled out of the water, and of filtered impurities

13
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disposed of 1in the plant’s filter backwashing processes.
These treatment residuals are conveyed to large sludge
settling lagoons situated downstream of the Scituate Dam
where they are regularly removed, processed, and disposed
of off-site by a specialty contractor. Due to recent needs
to 1increase the quantity of ferric sulfate added to the
water 1in order to enhance total organic carbon (TOC)
removal, the production of these treatment residuals has

been significantly exceeding past gquantity projections.

As a result of this, combined with environmental concerns
and new regulatory restrictions related to allowable iron
level discharges from the lagoons to the Pawtuxet River,
Providence Water will be changing its method of residuals
handling and removal. A new transmission 1line will be
installed to transport settled residuals directly from the
sedimentation basins at the plant to drying beds located
across the street from the plant, in the general area of
the lagoons. Rather than transporting large amounts of
residuals 1in a 1liquid slurry to the lagoon ponds as 1is
currently done, residuals will now instead Dbe dredged
directly from the plant’s sedimentation basins by the
specialty contractor, and pumped to the drying beds for

later disposal.

14
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Q. Is Providence Water requesting changes in funding for
chemical purchases and residuals handling?

A. Yes. Capital costs of $400,000 for the installation
of the new above-referenced pressure transport line are
shown in Exhibit PG-5. In accordance with previous rate
orders, funds for the purchase of treatment chemicals and
the residuals handling and disposal are allocated to the
restricted Chemical/Sludge Maintenance Fund that is
currently funded in accordance with past projections of
these costs. Our treatment plant personnel have updated
the cost projections for this filing to reflect the
following:

a) The change 1in water treatment whereby Providence
Water 1is returning to the pre-2005 treatment regime
with the finished water pH increasing from 9.7 to
18.2, necessitating additional lime purchases
relative to past projections.

b) An increase in the dosing rate of ferric sulfate in
order to comply with Total Organic Carbon (TOC)
removal requirements, necessitating additional ferric
sulfate purchases relative to past projections.

c) An increase 1in chlorine disinfectant dosing required
to maintain adequate disinfectant residuals within
the distribution system, necessitating additional
chlorine purchases relative to past projections.

d) A decrease in liquid fluoride dosing to reflect new

fluoride level guidelines, resulting in a decrease in

15
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needed fluoride purchases relative to past
projections.

e) Increase in residual handling and disposal costs
based on residual quantities that are in excess of
previous estimates, and the new above described
change in methodology related to residuals handling
and disposal.

The updated costs for treatment chemical purchases and
residuals handling and disposal have been provided to
Harold Smith and they are included in Mr. Smith’s testimony

as Schedules HJS-8 and HJS-9.

Q. Does this conclude your testimony?

A. Yes.

16



Exhibit PG-1

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
OFFICE OF DRINKING WATER QUALITY

w AH. FILE NO. (DWQ)

Providence Water Supply Board

CONSENT ORDER

WHEREAS, the Department of Health (Health) has responsibility for safe drinking water and
regulatory authority over public water systems in the state of Rhode Island; and

WHEREAS, the City of Providence public drinking water system (Providence Water) supplies
water to people in the state of Rhode Island: and

WHEREAS, Health drinking water regulations in accordance with EPA standards require water
testing for lead contamination; and

WHEREAS, Providence Water samplings taken in accordance with Health regulations a#d EPA
standards have demonstrated a lead level which exceeds the satisfactory level and triggers a lead
service line replacement program whereby seven percent (7%) of the service lines, as
determined in 2005, must be replaced annually; and

WHEREAS, Providence Water is up to date through calendar year 2011 on its 7% service line
replacements; and

WHEREAS; Provided Providence Water remains up to date on its lead service line
replacements at a rate of 7% each year, no regulatory action by Health is warranted; and

WHEREAS, concerns that have been raised about the effectiveness of partial lead service line
replacement in reducing lead exposure through water and the abatement of lead contained in
water supplied by Providence Water; and

WHEREAS, Health has a lead abatement program designed to address the issue of lead reaching
the citizenry of Rhode Island;

NOW, THEREFORE, Health and Providence Water agree to the following:

1. Health will grant Providence Water a stay during the 2012 season on its 7% service line
replacement requirement.

2. Providence Water will contribute $500,000 to Health's lead abatement program.



3. Providence Water will convene an expert advisory panel to evaluate corrosion control
treatment in the Providence Water's water system, including consideration of simultaneous
compliance issues. Costs of convening the panel, such as travel and hotel accommodations,
shall be borne by the Providence Water. The panel shall be composed of representatives
from Health, academia, and water supply professionals. Providence Water shall submit a
proposal by June 30, 2012 to Health for approval detailing the membership, how and
approximately how often the panel shall meet, and the proposed agenda for the panel. As
soon as practicable, but no later than August 31, 2012, the expert panel shall provide a
report and recommendations, including additional studies and/or treatment adjustments needed
to achieve the lead action level. Upon approval by Health, studies and treatment
adjustrents shall be implemented by the system.,

4. Providence Water shall remain on standard monitoring, as specified in the Rules and
Regulations Pertaining to Public Drinking Water [R46-13-DWQ] (Regulations), Section 6.86
(a) through (d), and Water Quality Parameter monitoring as specified in Section 6.87(a)
through (¢c). Providence Water shall also continue to meet the requirements regarding
public education as specified in the Regulations, Section 6.85, and reporting requirements as
specified in Section 6.90.

5. Prior to commencing scheduled or emergency system repairs or water main infrastructure
replacement work which require partial or full service line replacements during 2012,
Providence Water shall comply with the provisions of Section 6.84(d), regarding notification
and education. Also, Providence Water shall provide NSF/ANSI-certified point-of-use
water pitcher treatment units and one replaceable filter to affected residents who may
experience short-term elevated lead levels in drinking water as a result of a partial lead
service line replacement.

6. Outside of the lead service line replacements which shall take place under system repairs,
Providence Water shall use best efforts to solicit and conduct additional full lead line
replacements. Providence Water shall prioritize such best efforts in areas with the
greatest numbers of vulnerable populations including day care centers and schools. For
these full line replacements, Providence Water shall follow the requirements provided in
Item #5 above.

7. Should Providence Water, after having been given reasonable notice of any alleged
deficiencies, and a reasonable opportunity to cure any such deficiencies in performance
relative to this agreement, fail to meet the requirements of items one (1) through six (6)
above, a Tier 2 Treatment Technique violation shall be issued, for failure to replace at least
7% of lead service lines during 2012,

This Consent Order is satisfactory and accepted by both parties. The terms of this Order shall
become effective upon signing by both parties.

74 )12 /)2 ﬂ Ll @]\_”I’w‘y

Providenée Water Supply Board UMichael Fine, MD (Date)

PWS#1592024 Director of Health
R.L Department of Health




Exhibit PG-2

1 Department of Health
Q00°
< o Three Capitol Hill
1~/ L ﬁ Providence,RI 02908-5097
December 6, 2012 = " <3 b —_—"
'??’ QJ www.health.ri.gov
*eN 1 0%

Mr. Paul Gadoury, PE

Providence Water Supply Board, Director of Engineering
430 Scituate Avenue

Cranston, Rhode Island 02921

RE: pH Transition Implementation Plan for Philip J. Holton Water Purification Plant

Dear Director Gadoury:

This letter serves as The Rhode Island Department of Health, Office of Drinking Water Quality
(HEALTH) written review and conditional approval for the proposed Philip J. Holton Water
Purification Plant Treatment change. The application prepared by Providence Water with
supporting materials from the Expert Panel on Lead mitigation was received on August 31,
2012. and November 30, 2012. The materials were reviewed as submitted according to the Rules
and Regulations Pertaining to Public Drinking Water [R-46-13-DWQ] (hereinafter Regulations).
The following must be satisfactorily addressed prior to approval of the implementation of
treatment changes:

1. HEALTH approves the request for a return to pre-2005 treatment regime, 10.2 pH and
the associated alkalinity.

a) The return to pre-2005 treatment regime is a short term mitigating measure and
not a final optimized solution for corrosion control.

b) The attached Field Protocol for Sampling Lead Service Line Water Quality In
Association with Corrosion Control Treatment Changes at Providence Water is
required.

2. Special sampling studies to define service line contributions to lead content in tap water
shall be initiated immediately and results provided to HEALTH monthly. HEALTH
anticipates this study will commence no later than March 1, 2013.

3. Special sampling studies to define lead attached iron particles contributions to lead
content in tap water shall be initiated immediately and results provided to HEALTH
monthly. HEALTH anticipates this study will commence no later than March 1, 2013.

4. Special sampling studies shall be in addition to compliance monitoring under the Lead
and Copper Rule, which shall continue as required.

State of Rhode Island and Providence Plantations



5. Experimental lead pipe loops shall be initiated immediately to examine alternative
treatment schemes for optimization of corrosion control. All experimental loops shall
conform to HEALTH's Pilot Study Requirements, attached herein, as applicable, unless
relief is granted. Experimental pipe loops shall be initiated immediately and results
provided to HEALTH monthly. HEALTH anticipates this study will commence no later
than March 1, 2013. The experimental lead pipe loops shall include but not be limited to
the following:

a) Orthophosphate Corrosion Inhibitor
b) Silicate Based Corrosion Inhibitor
¢) pH/DIC based Corrosion Inhibitor (PbII Scale Equilibrium)

6. Measures shall be initiated to address the condition of Providence Water Distribution
system. These measures shall include but not be limited to:

a) A system wide unidirectional flushing program (UDF). A schedule and
implementation plan for UDF shall be submitted to HEALTH for approval no
later than February 1, 2013. HEALTH anticipates UDF will be aggressive in
approach and shall include at least 50% of the distribution system by 12/1/13.

b) An extensive infrastructure program consisting of cleaning lining and main
replacement of the estimated 50 to 55% of the distribution system that is
composed of unlined cast iron pipe. A revised Infrastructure Replacement Plan
addressing this shall be submitted to HEALTH by March 1, 2013.

7. Until such time as corrosion control has been deemed optimized HEALTH shall be
provided a monthly update on all activity related corrosion control.

8. All wholesale customers shall be appraised of any activity that could affect those system,
included but not limited to treatment change implantation schedule and flushing
activity.

Office of Drinking Wate

Xc: Clayton Commons, Lead Copper Rule Manager
June Swallow, Chief Drinking Water Quality
Dr. M. Fine, M.D. Director of Health
Boyce Spinelli, General Manger Providence Water
Greg Giasson, PE Senior Director - Operations Providence Water
Maureen McClelland, Senior Public Health Advisor for Drinking Water EPA Region 1
File



Exhibit PG-3
Existing IFR Plan

Existing 5-Yr Water Main Rehabilitation Plan
2014 - 2018

@ Replace / reline mains
(miles)

B Remaining unlined ClI

(miles)
5 Year Period (2014-2018) S50 Million
Replace / reline mains 48 mi
Remaining unlined Cl 502 mi

Existing 20-Yr Water Main Rehabilitation Plan 2014
-2033

@ Replace / reline mains
(miles)

@ Remaining unlined Cl

(miles)
20 Year Period (2014-2033) $245 Million
Replace / reline mains 232 mi
Remaining unlined CI 318 mi

Total Miles of Unlined Cast Iron Main 550 miles



Exhibit PG-4
Proposed IFR Funding

Proposed 5-Yr Water Main Rehabilitation Plan
2014 - 2018

@ Replace / reline mains
(miles)

@ Remaining unlined Cl

(miles)
5 Year Period (2014-2018) S77 Million
Replace / reline mains 73 mi
Remaining unlined Cl 477 mi

Proposed 20-Yr Water Main Rehabilitation Plan
2014 - 2033

@ Replace / reline mains
(miles)

@ Remaining unlined Ci

(miles)
20 Year Period (2014-2033) $362 Million
Replace / reline mains 343 mi
Remaining unlined CI 207 mi

Total Miles of Unlined Cast Iron Main 550 miles



Exhibit PG-5

Providence Water

CIP Expenditure Plan
Fiscal Years 2013 through 2017

Total Fy2013 Fy2014 Fy2015 Fy2016 Fy 2017

GIS System mapping conversion, data acquisition 1,600,000 1,000,000 500,000 100,000

UDF Program Development 520,000 130,000 130,000 130,000 130,000

ProvPort Meters 225,000 225,000

Treatment Residuals Handling Improvements 400,000 400,000

Installation of new fencing 125,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000
New PW Central Operations Facility 12,000,000 2,400,000 2,400,000 2,400,000 2,400,000 2,400,000

Total Amount $14,870,000 $4,180,000 $3,055,000 $2,655,000 $2,555,000 $2,425,000
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INTRODUCTION

Q. Please state your name and business address.
A. My name is Harold J. Smith and my business address is, 1031 South Caldwell Street,
Suite 100, Charlotte, North Carolina, 28203.

Q. By whom are you employed and in what capacity?

A. I'am a Vice President of Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. (RFC), a consulting firm
specializing in the areas of water and wastewater finance, pricing and ratemaking. RFC
was established in 1993 in Charlotte, North Carolina, by George A. Raftelis to provide
environmental and management consulting services to public and private sector clients.

RFC is a national leader in the development of water and wastewater rates.

Q. Please describe your educational background and work experience.

A. I obtained a Master of Business Administration from Wake Forest University in 1997
and a Bachelor of Science in Natural Resources from the University of the South in 1987.
As an employee of Raftelis Financial Consultants, I have been involved in numerous
projects for public utilities including a number of studies involving a wide range of
technical specialties including water utility cost of service and rate structure studies and

water utility financial planning studies.

Q. Have you previously testified before any Rhode Island regulatory agencies on
utility rate related matters? |

A. Yes. [ provided testimony before the Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission
(RIPUC) in three of Providence Water Supply Board’s (Providence Water) rate
filings (Docket Nos. 4070, 4061 and 3832) and in Newport Water’s six most recent
filings (Docket Nos. 3578, 3675, 3818, 4025, 4243 and 4355). 1 have also provided
testimony on water rate related matters before the Tennessee Regulatory Authority as

well as in court proceedings in Arizona and Connecticut.
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Q. Do you belong to any professional organizations or committees?
A. Yes. I am a member of the American Water Works Association where I served as
chairman of the Competitive Practices Committee and I am a member of the Financial

Management Committee of the New England Water Works Association.

Q. Please describe your role in this proceeding?

A. I have worked with Providence Water’s Senior Director of Administration Jeanne
Bondarevskis, its General Manager Boyce Spinelli, and the staff of Providence Water to
develop a normalized test-year, the fiscal year ending (FYE) June 30, 2012 and a rate
year January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014. In additibn, RFC was engaged to
perform cost allocations and develop cost based rates and charges. Finally, RFC was
asked to develop, for the consideration of the RIPUC and Providence Water, a
conservation rate structure for single family residential customers and a demand
management structure for wholesale customers. The results of my analyses are presented

in the testimony and incorporated herein.

Q. Please describe the purpose of your testimony.

A. This testimony provides an explanation for each schedule attached to my testimony.
The schedules calculate the proposed commodity rates for retail customers of Providence
Water, and proposed wholesale rates for East Providence, East Smithfield, Greenville,
Kent County, Smithfield, WarWick, Lincoln, Johnston, and Bristol County. Other
charges calculated in the model include proposed monthly service charges, and proposed
public and private fire protection charges for Providence Water customers. The
testimony also serves as a guide to other sources where assumptions are used, the logic
that was used in the development of the model, and the flow of empirical and calculated

information.
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Q. What are your general conclusions?
A. As shown on schedule HIS-1, Providence Water is in need of additional rate revenue
of $14,619,888 to properly fund O&M and capital costs related to providing safe and

reliable service to its customers. This represents a revenue increase of 24.3%.

Q. Will all rates increase by 24.3%?
A. No, this represents the increase in the total revenue requirements. Please see HJS-19,
which provides a breakdown of current rates, proposed rates, and the associated

percentage changes.

CONTENT OF EXHIBITS
Q. Please provide a brief description of your prefiled Exhibits.

A. My pre-filed exhibits fall into two categories, those addressing the development of a
normalized test and rate year revenue requirements, and those addressing the cost of

service allocation and rate design. They are as follows:

1. Normalized Test-Year and Rate Year Revenue Requirements:

a. Schedule HJS-1 Cost of Service Summary: This schedule shows a
summary of the of costs and revenues associated with serving Providence
Water Customers, under the current rates (pro-forma old rates) and under
the proposed rates (pro-forma new rates).

b. Schedule HJS-2 Raw Revenue Requirements: This schedule shows the
revenue requirements in the adjusted test year, the rate-year adjustments
(reviewed below) and the rate-year revenue requirements used to
determine the pro-forma rates.

c. Schedule HJS-3 Payroll Expense Adjustment: This schedule
summarizes normalizing and contractual adjustments made to the test-year
payroll expenses to determine the appropriate rate year amounts for

payroll related expenses.
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Schedule HJS-3A Detail Payroll Expense: This schedule shows the
detailed normalizing and contractual adjustments made to payroll related
expenses.

Schedule HJS-4 Prdperty Tax Expense: This schedule summarizes the
adjustments made to the test year property tax expenses to determine the
appropriate pro-forma amounts.

Schedule HJS-4A Property Tax Detail: This schedule details the
adjustments made to the test year property tax amounts and shows a
comparison of the prior year’s property tax amounts.

Schedule HJS-5 Insurance Expense Adjustment: This schedule
summarizes adjustments made to test year insurance expenses.

Schedule HJS-6 Pension and Other Benefits:  This schedule
summarizes adjustments made to test-year Pension and Other Benefits
related expenses.

Schedule HJS-6A Fringe Allocation: This schedule summarizes the
allocation of the total rate year adjustment to Pension and Other Benefits
to the accounts associated with these benefits.

Schedule HJS-7 Regulatory Commission and Rate Case Expense:
This schedule summarizes the adjustments made to the test-year
regulatory and rate case expense.

Schedule HJS-8 Chemical and Sludge Maintenance Expense: This
schedule shows the adjustments to test-year chemical and sludge related
expenses.

Schedule HJS-8A Adjustment to Chemical Expense: This schedule
details thé determination of the adjustment to the test-year chemical

expenses to reflect anticipated prices and quantities in the rate year.

. Schedule HJS-9 Restricted Fund Adjustments: This schedule

summarizes all test-year and rate year adjustments made to restricted

funds.
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n. Schedules HJS-9A through 9J Restricted Funds: This schedule details

the sources and uses of Providence Water’s restricted funds.

2. Cost of Service Allocation and Rate Design Methodology

a.

Schedule HJS-10 Revenue under Existing Rates: This schedule shows
the revenues that would be generated in the rate year under existing rates.
Revenues are shown by individual charge, including revenues generated
by quarterly and monthly service charges, retail and wholesale
consumption charges, and public and private fire protection charges.
Schedule HJS-11 O&M Cost Allocation: This schedule shows the way
in which operations and maintenance (O&M) costs and miscellaneous
revenues are allocated to different cost of service categories.

Schedule HJS-12 Capital Cost Allocation: This schedule shows the way
in which capital costs are allocated to the different cost of service
categories.

Schedule ¥JS-13 Property Tax Allocation: This schedule shows the
way in which Providence Water’s property tax expenses are allocated to
different cost of service categories

Schedule HJS-14 Allocations Legend: This schedule provides a brief
explanation of each of the allocation factors used to allocate costs to the
cost of services categories and to customer classes.

Schedule HJS-15 Summary of Cost Allecations: This schedule
summarizes the rate year expenses that Providence Water is seeking to
recover through rates, as well as the allocation of these expenses to cost of
service categories. This schedule also presents a calculation of the net
operating revenue allowance increase required.

Schedule HJS-16 Units of Service: Projected water consumption and
peaking factors for each customer are shown on this schedule.

Schedule HJS-17 Unit Cost of Service: This schedule shows the
calculation of unit costs resulting from the allocation of different types of

expenses to the cost of service categories.
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Schedule HJS-18 Cost Distribution to Customer Classes: The
allocation of categorized costs to customer classes based on their demand
characteristics is shown on this schedule.

Schedule HJS-19 Proposed Rates and Impacts: This schedule shows
the proposed water service charges and commodity charges for each
customer class, public and private fire charges, and the percent change that
the proposed charges represent over existing rates.

Schedule HJS-20 Comparison of Revenues by Customer Class: This
schedule provides a comparison of revenues generated from each
customer class under both the existing and proposed rates. Also shown is
the percent difference between revenues under existing and proposed
rates.

Schedule HJS-21 Typical Charge Comparison: This schedule provides
a comparison of typical annual charges under the existing and proposed

rates for typical residential, commercial and industrial customers.

. Schedule HJS-22 Revenue Proof: This schedule provides a summary of

the revenue requirements and revenue to be recovered under the proposed
rates.

Schedule HJS-23 Projected Volumes: This schedule summarizes
consumption data for each of Providence Water’s customer classes (and
each wholesale customerj for the test-year, pro-forma rate year and the

previous three fiscal years.

3. Conservation Rate Filing:

a. HJS-24 Summary of Conservation Rates: This schedule summarizes

current rates, proposed rates and alternative conservation rates, by charge,
for each customer class.

HJS-25 Calculation of Revenue at Present and Proposed Rates: This
schedule summarizes revenue under current rates, proposed rates and

alternative conservation rates, by major revenue source.
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c. HJS-26 Calculation of Single-Family Residential Conservation Rates:
This provides an overview of the assumptions used to calculate the Single-
Family Residential conservation rates.

d. HJS-27 Single Family Residential Customer Bill Impacts -
Conservation Rates: This schedule indicates the bill impact of
conservation rates for typical Providence Water Single-Family Residential
Customers.

e. HJS-28: Wholesale Monthly Block Calculations: This schedule
summarizes the assumptions used to calculate the Wholesale Demand
Management rates.

f. HJS-29 Bill Frequency Summary — Single Family Residential: This
schedule summarizes the distribution of usage and bills of Providence
Water’s Single-Family Residential Customers.

g. HJS-30 Wholesale Monthly Consumption for Conservation Rates:
This schedule summarizes monthly consumption for each of Providence
Water’s wholesale customers as well as the consumption within each of
the blocks of the demand management rate structure.

4. Appendix Schedule(s):

a. HJS-A1l Comparative Schedule of Expenses: This schedule summarizes
the detailed test-year operating expenses as provided by Providence
Water, the test-year adjustments described below, and the adjusted test-

year values for each operating expense.

NORMALIZED TEST-YEAR
Q. What adjustments did you make to the Jume 30, 2012 audited financial

statements to arrive at a normalized “rate making basis” test year?
A. Tmade 5 normalizing adjustments as follows:
1. Retail and wholesale metered sales revenue levels (See HIS-10) were adjusted to
reflect the increases approved in Providence Water’s last abbreviated rate filing.
Test-year consumption levels were adjusted to reflect a four-year average for

wholesale and a three-year average for retail (see HIS-23).
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2. Consistent with previous filings the current number of water and fire service
customer was used to calculate revenue ﬁnder current rates (see HIS-10).

3. Normalizing adjustments were made to test-year payroll expense, to account, and
adjust for, payroll volatility experienced in the test year (see HIS-A1).

4. 1 removed the payroll clearing amounts, which represent operating expenses for
which Providence Water receives reimbursement from the IFR fund. Overhead
rate applied amounts, which are not reimbursed, were restored (see HIS-A1).

5. T'made an adjustment to remove a non-recurring negative expense associated with
an insurance reimbursement, from Contractual Service Legal A&GO (see HIS-

Al).

Q. Why was a three-year average used for retail consumption, rather than the four-
year average used in past filings?

A. Providence Water experienced above average consumption in FY 2009. Including
this year, as the four-year average would, would result in a higher overall pro-forma
consumption for retail. I believe the three-year average is a better representation of retail

consumption for Providence Water retail customers going forward.

Q. Mr. Smith, in your professional opinion, does your adjusted test year present a
proper normalized test-year?

A. Yes, I believe that the adjusted, normalized test year I have prepared for this filing
fairly presents the operations of Providence Water in a normal year on a ratemaking basis

with currently approved rates.

RATE YEAR (CYE December 31, 2014)

Q. Mr. Smith, what is the rate year for this Docket?
A. The rate year is the calendar year beginning January 1, 2014 and ending December 31,
2014.
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Q. What adjustments have you made for the rate year in this filing?

A. After reviewing Providence Water’s test year financial position I have made rate year

adjustments to 9 specific accounts or groups of accounts as follows:

I

I made adjustments which total $641,579 to Payroll related expense accounts to
account for contractual increases in salaries and wages in the Rate Year (see
Schedule HIJS-3).

I made adjustments which total $794,942 to Property Tax expense to account for
anticipated increases between the test-year and pro-forma rate year (see Schedule
HIS-4).

I made inflationary adjustments to Insurance related expenses, which total
$124,943 (see Schedule HJS-5).

I made adjustments to Pension and Other Benefits (OPEB) related accounts,
which total $130,954 in recognition of contractual and inflationary increases
associated with employee pensions, benefits and health insurance (see Schedule
HJS-6).

I made an adjustment of $160,223 to the regulatory and rate case expense to
account for anticipated costs in the rate-year and a two-year amortization of the
rate case expense (see Schedule HIS-7).

I'made an adjustment to accounts related to Chemicals and Sludge maintenance to
match the total required level for this restricted fund of $5,458,942. The total
adjustment was $2,333,977 (see Schedule HJS-8).

I'made an $8,000,000 adjustment to the current funding level of the Infrastructure

‘Replacement Fund. Please see Paul Gadoury’s testimony for further details on

this adjustment (see Schedule HIS-9).

In addition to the above adjustments, I have also adjusted all remaining accounts for

inflation (2.5% per year) per Commission rule 2.6(c)(4), and made an adjustment to

provide for the net operating income allowance of 3% (see Schedule HIS-2).
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Q. How did you calculate the increase needed for salaries and wages for the rate
year?
A. Istarted with the actual amount of salaries and wages for each account in the adjusted

test year June 30, 2012. Next I adjusted the test year amounts by 3% for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2013 and 1.5% for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014. The Union
Contract requires a 3% increase on July 1, 2013 and again on J uly 1, 2014. However,
since the 2014 increase occurs six months into calendar year 2014, it is an effective

increase of 1.5%. The total compounded salary increase is 4.55%

The resulting total payroll expense was then compared to the test year payroll expense to

calculate the rate year adjustment (See Schedules HJS-3 and HJ S-3A).

Q. The next adjustment listed is that for property taxes. How did you calculate the
rate year property taxes for this filing?

A. T started with the actual FYE June 30, 2013 property taxes and projected the FYE
2014 and 2015 taxes based on the 4% statutory maximum, excluding Scituate and
Glocester, whose amounts were based on their respective tax treaties with Providence
Water. The FYE 2014 and 2015 amounts were then averaged to determine the rate year
property tax amounts (see Schedule HIS-4A).

Q. Mr. Smith, you have used projected increases for FYE 2014 and FYE 2015. Ts it
your intention to update the estimates for CYE 2014 property taxes when the actual
percentage increases are known?

A. Yes. I will advise the Division and Commission as to the actual FYE 2014 property
taxes when they become known (i.e., when the tax bills are issued) and I will adjust my
estimates for CY 2014, if needed.

Q. What account would you like to discuss next?

A. Insurance Expense. Six different activities comprise the insurance expense shown on
Schedule HIS-5. Workers Compensation and Property and Casualty represent the
majority of insurance expense, accounting for around 95% of the insurance expense

accounts. To estimate the CY 2014 Insurance Expense, I started with the actual

10
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insurance expense for FYE June 30, 2012. I then adjusted to this amount by the 2.5% per
year inflation rate (6.38% total) for each Insurance Expense account (see Schedule HJS-
5). It should be noted that Providence Water will be taking bids for insurance contracts
in the coming months. These estimates will be updated when the exact amount of the

insurance expenses become known.

Q. The next set of accounts is Pension and Other Benefits. How did you calculate
the rate year level of expense for these related accounts?

A. The Pension and Other Benefits accounts are listed on Schedule HJS-6. This
schedule shows the test year level of expense for each item, the proposed adjustment and
the pro-forma expense for each item. It further shows the percentage increase used to

calculate the pro-forma adjustment.

Q. Mr. Smith, how did you determine the appropriate increases for the Pension and
Other Benefit costs?

A. The 1033 Union combined benefits and Union Pension were increased per the Union
Contract. The Death Benefit Insurance and Educational Classes/ Certification, which vary
depending on participation, were increased by inflation (2.5% per year). FICA,
Unemployment Compensation and the %% wage assignment were increased by the
compounded salary increase used to adjust wages (4.55%). The Blue Cross and Delta
Dental expenses were adjusted to remove the employee co-share and increased by 10%.
The GASB 43/45 was reduced from the total expense in FY 2012 to reflect the cash
portion of this expense. City Retirement expense was increased to the amount shown in
the Buck Report. Also, note that the total adjustment to Pension and Other Benefits has
been allocated proportionally to related NARUC accounts, as in previous filings (see
Schedule HIS-6A).

Q. Mr. Smith, why did you use 10% instead of estimating the increase based on

prior premium increases, as has been done in previous filings?
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A. The City of Providence has recently made changes to health insurance plans
Providence Water provides for employees. As a result, the rates over the past few years
are not directly comparable, as they reflect changes in plans and the way the rates are
calculated. In addition, as with insurance related expenses, Providence Water will be
receiving working rates for health and dental insurance contracts in the coming months.
It is my intent to update the rate year estimates for health and dental insurance expenses

when the actual amount of the expenses becomes known.

Q. How did you calculate the regulatory and rate case expense for the rate year?

A. 1 began with the test year amounts for the Regulatory Commission expense.
Estimates for the Rate Year amounts were provided by Providence Water and are based
on a three-year average (for each category) of prior years, excluding the ‘proportionate
share of PUC’ expense, which is based on the actual amount paid in FY 2013. Added to
the Regulatory Commission Expense is the cost of the full rate filing (based on contract
amounts where available). The sum of the Regulatory Commission Expense and the Rate
Filing Expense (amortized over two years) was then compared to the test year total to

determine the rate year adjustment (see Schedule HIS-7).

Q. The next set of accounts listed above are Chemical and Sludge. How did you
calculate the rate year level of expense for chemicals and sludge?

A. Please see my schedules HIS-8 and HIS-8A. For the chemical expense adjustment, 1
compared the projected prices and quantities from Providence Water’s engineering
department for FYE June 30, 2013 to the test year 2012 expenses. The adjustment to
chemical expenses is the difference between the pro-forma chemical expenses and the
test-year expenses. The sludge maintenance adjustment is based on a comparison
between the expense incurred in the test year and the contractual amount in the pro-forma
rate year. Note that Providence Water is requesting an increase of $3,000,000 over the
current chemical and sludge funding level of $2,458,942, for a total pro-forma funding
level of $5,458,942. Please see the testimony of Paul Gadoury for more detail on this

item.
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Q. Mr. Smith, why did you use the projected FYE 2013 prices and quantities to
determine the pro-forma expense, rather than an average of prior years?

A. After examining the prices, quantities and resultant expense under the average
method, Providence Water’s engineering department felt the 2013 projected amounts
were more representative of the chemical expense they would incur during the rate year.

Please see the testimony of Paul Gadoury for further details.

Q. Mr. Smith, have any adjustments been made to restricted accounts?

A. Yes. The following adjustments were made to restricted accounts.
1. As stated earlier, I adjusted the insurance fund level by $307,528 to ensure the
funding level going forward will be sufficient to cover the level of expenditures
incurred during the test-year (which exceeded the current funding level) and any
anticipated increases associated with inflation. This adjustment accounts for the
difference between the current funding level (§1,777,062) and the anticipated pro-
forma insurance expense ($2,084,590) (see Schedule HIS-9F).
2. As stated earlier, the Chemical and Sludge Maintenance fund was adjusted by
the requested additional $3,000,000 to cover expenses anticipated in the rate year
(see Schedule HIS-9G).
3. The Infrastructure Replacement Fund was increased by $8,000,0000ver the test
year level of funding. Please see the testimony of Mr. Paul Gadoury for further
details.
4. The revenue reserve fund contains the restricted portion of the operating
allowance (2% of operating expenses). I have adjusted the current level of
funding to a level that represents 2% of the operating expenses in the rate year. I
increased the balance of this fund to $1,427,698, which is 2% of the rate year
operating expenses (see Schedule HIS-91).

Q. Mr. Smith, are there any other rate year adjustments you would like to address?

A. Yes. I have made $507,545 in additional adjustments to transmission and distribution

line items. These costs relate to the uni-directional flushing project Providence Water
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will be engaged in over the next four years. I have also made $431,493 in adjustments to
Customer Accounts and Administrative categories to reflect the additional costs
associated with the transition to monthly billing. These relate primarily to increases in

staffing and mailing expenses associated with the increase in billing frequency (see
Schedule HIS-2).

COST ALLOCATION AND RATE DESIGN

Q. How are Providence Water’s costs allocated to the different customer classes?

A. The proposed rates are based on the same approach that Providence Water used in its
previous full rate filing, which is a modified base/extra capacity approach in which costs
are allocated to cost of service categories based on the type of service being provided and
then to customer classes based on the way in which each class demands service. For
instance, costs incurred to meet the average day demand of Providence Water’s
customers are allocated to the “Base” cost of service category, while costs associated
with meeting peak daily demands are allocated to the “Max Day” category. Costs for
services that are provided regardless of how much water is consumed such as meter
reading and billing are allocated to either “Meters & Services” or “Billing & Collection”.
Costs associated with providing fire protection to the general public through fire hydrants

are allocated to the “Public Fire Protection” category.

Q. Why do you characterize the allocation approach as a “Modified” Base/Extra
Capacity approach?

A. I'make this distinction because the approach used in this and previous filings utilizes
a wholesale cost of service category to which costs associated with providing service to
wholesale customers are allocated. This approach is different from a standard base/extra
capacity approach in that it does not take into account the way in which the wholesale
class demands service but instead bases the allocation of costs to the wholesale customers

on their proportionate share of total consumption.

Q. Is this approach incorrect or against standard industry practice?
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A. No, standard industry practice allows for a great deal of flexibility when it comes to
the way in which costs are allocated to customer classes. The modified approach used in
this filing assumes that the demand characteristics of all of the wholesale customers are
the same and that their demands for service are essentially the same as the demands

placed on the system by the entire retail class.

Q. Mr. Smith, why have the quarterly units of service and associated charges been
eliminated for the various service charges shown in HJS-19?
A. In this filing Providence Water is proposing a transition to monthly billing for all

retail customers.

Q. Will this impact the way service charges are calculated?

A. No, Service Charges in this filing were calculated using the same methodology as has
been used in prior filings. The only difference is that the number of bills has increased
(particularly for the retail service charge), due to the fact that retail customers, most of
whom are currently billed quarterly, would be billed monthly under the proposed rates.
There is also a slight increase in the overall revenue requirement allocated to the various
service charges, due to the expenses associated with increasing the bill frequency for

retail customers.

Q. How are the revenue requirements allocated to each of Providence Water’s
customer classes? _

A. The revenue requirements are allocated to each custbmer class based on the way in
which the class contributes to the demand for base and excess capacity. For instance, as
shown on HJS-16, the residential class is responsible for the demand associated with
approximately 23,000 hundred cubic feet (hef) or approximately 65% of capacity
required to meet average day or “base” demand. Therefore it is allocated approximately

65% of the costs associated with meeting base demand.
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Q. How are costs allocated to the wholesale customers?

A. As was the case in Providence Water’s last full rate filing, costs are allocated to the
wholesale customers based on their proportionate share of total consumption and no
consideration is given to the demand characteristics of the wholesale customers. Where

appropriate, this proportion is adjusted to account for the wholesale share of lost water.

Q. How are the rates and charges calculated?

A. Rates are calculated as they were in Providence Water’s previous rate filing. Retail

- service charges are calculated by dividing the costs allocated to the Meters & Services

category by the number of 5/8” equivalent meters in the system to determine a cost per
5/8” equivalent meter and then dividing the costs allocated to the Billing & Collection
category by the total number of bills prepared each year to determine a unit cost per bill.

The sum of these two unit costs is the Service Charge.

Commodity rates are calculated by dividing the total of the base and extra capacity costs
allocated to each customer class by the projected rate year consumption of that customer
class. For example, the rate for the commercial class is determined by dividing total base
and extra capacity costs allocated to the commercial class ($12,802,108) by projected
commercial class consumption in the rate year (4,381,008 hcf). The resulting value,

rounded up to the nearest tenth of a cent, is the proposed rate for the commercial class

(82.922/hcf).

Q. What is the Providence Only Retail Fire Protection Service Charge?

A. The Retail Fire Protection Service Charge is a monthly charge paid by Providence
Water retail customers living within the City of Providence. It is intended to recover the
cost of providing Public Fire Protection service within the City of Providence.
Providence Water previously recovered these costs through the Public Fire Protection
Service Charge, levied per hydrant for each hydrant located within the City of

Providence. When this charge was disallowed by law, a new charge was developed,
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which recovers these costs from retail customers residing within the City of Providence.

Please refer to Docket No. 4287 for further details.

Q. What is the Public Fire Protection Service Charge?

A. The Public Fire Protection charge recovers the cost of providing Public Fire
Protection incurred by Providence Water. It is based on theoretical maximum day and
maximum hour demand that fire protection might place on the system. A portion of the
costs associated with this demand are recovered via the public fire protection charge, on a
per hydrant basis, of the City of Cranston, and the Towns of Johnston, Lincoln and North
Providence. As mentioned above, the costs associated with providing Public Fire
Protection to the City of Providence are now recovered from retail customers on an

equivalent meter basis.

Q. How are wholesale rates calculated?

A. Under the existing rates, wholesale customers pay a commodity charge that is
assessed based on their water consumption. The methodology used to calculate the
existing wholesale rate has been maintained for the proposed rate calculations in this

filing.

Q. Is the disparity in the increases in wholesale rates and retail rates due to some
difference in the way costs are allocated to the wholesale customers or the way in
which their rates. are calculated?

A. No, the cost allocation approach used in this filing is the same as was used in
Providence Water’s last full rate filing and the percentage of costs allocated to the
wholesale class is generally the same in this filing as it was in the last filing. The
disparity between the increases to wholesale rates and retail rates is most likely due to the
fact that the wholesale rate increases that were agreed to by the parties to Providence
Water’s recent abbreviated filings were not based on a complete cost of service study and

did not reflect the true cost associated with providing wholesale service.
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Q. Have you provided information on what the customer impacts are projected to
be?

A. Yes, Schedule HJS-21 shows bills under existing and proposed rates and the
percentage impacts that are likely to occur for typical residential, commercial, and
industrial customers. For a typical residential customer using 100 hcf per year, their

annual charges increase from $322.16 to $395.14 which represents a 23% increase.

Q. What consideration has been given as to whether the revenues from the rates and
charges are sufficient to cover revenue requirements for Providence Water?

A. HJS-22 serves as a revenue proof to determine revenue sufficiency of the proposed
rates and charges.  The revenues that would be generated under the proposed rate

structure are shown for commodity rates, service charges, and fire protection charges.

Q. According to the rate model, are the rates and charges calculated sufficient to
meet revenue requirements?
A. Yes, as shown in HJS-22, the revenues projected to be recovered from the proposed

rates are approximately $1,747 greater than the revenue requirements for the Rate Year.

CONSERVATION RATES
Q. Please summarize your findings and recommendations to the Commission in
this proceeding.

A. Working with Providence Water management and staff, RFC developed the above
rate year revenue requirements and cost of service allocations. These in turn were
used to develop a conservation rate structure for Providence Water’s single-family
residential customers as well as a structure to promote conservation among

Providence Water’s wholesale customers.

18



10
11
12
13
14
13
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
29
28
29
30

Providence Water Supply Board
Harold J. Smith Testimony

Q.
A.

=

Is Providence Water requesting a revenue increase in this rate proposal?

As mentioned above, the conservation structure is based on the revenues
Providence Water is proposing for this docket. The conservation rates are
designed to be revenue neutral, with respect to the proposed ‘non-conservation’
filing detailed above. However, as shown on Schedule HIS-25, implementation of
the conservation rates would result in Providence Water collecting slightly higher
revenues (approximately 0.005%) than those requested in the proposed non-
conservation structure. This difference in revenues is simply the result of

rounding the rates to the appropriate number of decimal places.

Will all rates increase by the same amount?

No. First, the conservation rate proposal only affects the commodity rates
assessed to Providence Water’s single-family residential customers and its
wholesale customers; therefore the other rates and charges would remain the same
as those currently being proposed for this filing. Second, since the proposed rate
structures are inclining block rates, the change from the rates currently in effect

will be dependent upon the amount of water consumed.

Why have you only developed conservation rate structures for Providence
Water’s single-family residential and wholesale customers?

The proposed rate structures are designed to reduce discretionary consumption
and it is more difficult to distinguish between discretionary and non-discretionary
consumption for customers other than single-family residential. The most
common method for estimating non-discretionary usage for non-homogenous
customer classes, such as multi-family residential, commercial, and industrial
customers, is the use of individualized block rates, similar to what we have done

for the wholesale customers.

If that is the case, how were you able to develop conservation rates for the

wholesale customers?
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A.

> 2

2

While the rates for the wholesale customers should help promote conservation,
they would be more accurately described as demand management rates in that
they involve assessing higher per unit rates when a wholesale customers demand

exceeds a predetermined level based on their past usage.

Do the proposed wholesale rates target discretionary consumption?

Not directly, but since the proposed rates discourage consumption above a certain
level they should provide an incentive for each of Providence Water’s wholesale
customers to implement their own conservation initiatives that will specifically
target discretionary consumption in an effort to reduce total demand. However, it
should be noted that it is possible that for wholesale customers the block rates
could promote undesirable results, in particular some customers may resort to less

sustainable water sources during peak usage periods to avoid the higher rates.

Please describe how you developed the details of the rate structures that you
are proposing.

When developing any kind of rate structure, it is first necessary to determine
whether the utility has necessary data. An inclining block structure should be
based on customer demand data resulting from meter reads perfo.rmed at least
monthly. This type of data is necessary in order to develop an understanding of
the customers’ demand characteristics so that their reaction to conservation rates

can be predicted.

Would you describe the data used for this conservation filing?

Providence Water provided consumption data for single family residential
customers for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012. This data details the
distribution of consumption at various levels for each month of that fiscal year.

Providence Water also provided wholesale consumption by month for FY 2012.
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Q.

> 2

How did you determine the appropriate number of blocks and block cut-offs
for the residential inclining block structure?

The number of blocks and block cut-offs are to a large degree dependent upon the
type of demand that the utility wishes to target with its conservation message. In
Providence Water’s case, it was decided that the utility wished to target
discretionary consumption. A three block inclining block structure helps achieve
this objective by charging a relatively low unit rate for non-discretionary usage; a
slightly higher rate for consumption that could be attributed to responsible lawn

irrigation and a still higher rate for usage that could be considered to be excessive.

Please discuss what you mean by non-discretionary consumption.
For the residential class, non-discretionary consumption is consumption that is
necessary to support a modern lifestyle. It includes water for such things as

drinking, cooking, bathing, laundry and toilet flushing.

What about discretionary consumption?

Discretionary consumption is water use other than non-discretionary use and
includes such things as lawn irrigation, pool filling and car washing although
many will make the argument that lawn irrigation is not truly discretionary. This
argument is valid to some extent in that many people have invested a significant
amount of money and time in their lawns and landscapes and proper irrigation is
necessary to maintain that investment. Thus many utilities consider a reasonable

level of lawn irrigation to be non-discretionary consumption.

How much non-discretionary water does a typical single-family residential
customer use?

Obviously the level of non-discretionary usage varies by customer depending on a
number of variables, with the dominant variable being family size. Larger
families typically require more water than small families. One common way of

determining the typical level of non-discretionary usage within a service area is to
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> 2

look at consumption during the winter months when outdoor water use is at a
minimum. In the case of Providence Water, average consumption by single-
family residential customers in December 2012 (the month with the lowest
consumption in the most recent twelve months examined) was approximately 5.5
hef per month. We believe this is a reasonable estimate of the average non-

discretionary usage by Providence Water single-family customers.

What are the proposed blocks for single-family residential customers?

Based on examination of Providence Water's data and discussions with
Providence Water staff the proposed block cut-offs are 6 hef and 12 hef per
month. There is no exact science for determining these cut-offs, but given the
usage patterns of Providence Water's customers and the utility's conservation

goals we believe they are appropriate.

How do the proposed conservation rates for single-family residential
customers compare to the proposed non-conservation rate for single-family
customers?

The Block 1 rate for usage up to 6 hef per month is 5.50% lower than the
proposed uniform volume rate, the Block 2 rate is 3.40% higher than the proposed
uniform volume rate, while the Block 3 rate is 17.15% higher than the proposed

uniform volume rate (see Schedule HIS-24).

What is the proposed block cut-off for wholesale customers?

We have set the second block for wholesale customers at 120% of average winter

- consumption. As discussed previously with the single-family residential blocks,

there is no exact science for determining this amount, but we believe that this will
encourage wholesale customers to implement their own conservation rates to
avoid the additional costs of buying water in the second block (see Schedule HJS-
28).
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Q.
A.

Why does the wholesale structure only have two rate blocks?

As mentioned earlier, the proposed wholesale structure is a demand management
structure that is designed to provide an incentive to Providence Water’s wholesale
customers to implement conservation initiatives of their own. The use of two
blocks accomplishes this goal, but is still relatively simple to calculate, implement

and understand.

How do the proposed rates for wholesale customers compare to the existing
rates?

The Block 1 rate for usage up to 120% of average winter consumption (AWC) is
2.72% less than the current uniform volume rate while the rate for Block 2 usage
over 120% of AWC is 16.74% higher than the proposed uniform volume rate (see
Schedule HIS-28) |

What period will be used to determine each wholesale customer's average
winter consumption (AWC)?
Each wholesale customer's AWC will be set each year in May based on the

previous November through April billings.

How do the proposed rate changes for wholesale customers compare to those
of single-family residential customers?

The difference between Block 1 and Block 2 was set at 20%, approximately the
same difference between Block 1 and Block 3 of the single-family residential

rates.

What are the impacts of the proposed wholesale rates on Providence Water
wholesale customers?

The hypothetical impacts on wholesale customers based on their usage in the
period of July 2011 through June 2012 are shown at the bottom of Schedule HJS-

30. The total annual hypothetical impact ranges from a decrease of 2.72% for
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Kent County Water Authority, which had no usage over its AWC in the period, to
an increase of 2.08% for Johnston, which had the highest percentage of usage
above its AWC during the period.

Does your conservation proposal impact any of the other charges mentioned
above?

No, only the single family residential and wholesale volume rates are impacted
by the conservation proposal. The remaining proposed rates and charges were
determined as they were in the previous full rate filings (see Cost of Service
Analysis and Rate Design above) and are not impacted by the conservation rate

portion of this filing.

How would the change to monthly billing impact single-family residential
customers?

As mentioned above the move to monthly billing means some additional costs
associated with increasing billing frequency. However, it is also important to note
that Providence Water is proposing to change to monthly billing regardless of
whether conservation rates are implemented. In other words, the additional costs
associated with monthly billing are already accounted for in the proposed service
charges, which would be unchanged in the conservation rate structure. The
overall bill impact under conservation rates depends upon the consumption of a
given single family residential customer. Please see HJS-27, for a summary of

bills, at various consumption levels, under the proposed and conservation rates.

Does your proposal include any other changes to Providence Water's revenue
requirements?

We have not incorporated any changes in Providence Water's revenue
requirements beyond those already proposed above. However as noted above,
due to rounding, the conservation rates could result in revenue generation slightly

above what could occur under the non-conservation structure (around .005% of
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total revenues). In addition, one potential area of concern that we will follow is
the potential revenue decrease due to the effectiveness of the conservation rates in
decreasing non-discretionary consumption. We have used a price elasticity of -.2
(Meaning that the proposed 10% increase in Block 3 rates would result in a 2%
decrease in usage in that block) to reflect the effectiveness of the conservation
rates. This estimate of elasticity is taken from the American Water Works
Association Manual M-1 (Chapter 21) which bases its estimate on elasticity
studies performed by others. However, if consumption decreases at a greater
level than that, Providence Water could face a revenue shortfall, so it may be

necessary to adjust the allowed reserve in the future.

In his testimony, Mr. Spinelli recommends that the transition to conservation
rates be postponed to evaluate the impact of monthly billing on customer
demand. Do you concur with Mr. Spinelli’s assessment?

Yes. It is possible that the switch to monthly billing might have an independent
effect on retail customer demand, even in the absence of conservation rates.
Implementing monthly billing first will allow Providence Water to evaluate the
impact of the change in billing frequency, without the confounding ihﬂuence of
also implementing a conservation rate structure. This will provide better

information for the development of conservation rates going forward.

Mr. Smith, does that conclude your testimony?

Yes it does.
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Item 2.5(a)
Response

Item 2.5 (b)
Response

Item 2.5 (c)(1)
Response

Item 2.5 (c)(2)
Response

Item 2.5 (c)(3)
Response

Item 2.5 (c)(4)
Response

Item 2.5(c)(5)
Response

Item 2.5 (c)(6)
Response

Item 2.5 (c)(7)
Response

Item 2.6(a)
Response

Item 2.6(b)
Response

Item 2.6(c)
Response

Item 2.7
Response

EXHIBIT 2

Index and Responses in Compliance with Part 2

Current and Proposed Rate Schedules; Terms and Conditions

Included under heading “Tariffs”. See Tab 3.

Complete Direct Case with Testimony and Exhibits
Included as Testimony of Witnesses, with Exhibits

Annual Reports to Commission
Filed

FERC or FCC annual reports
Not applicable

FERC or FCC audit reports
Not applicable

SEC Annual 10K reports
Not applicable

Prospectuses issued during last two (2) years
Not applicable

Annual Reports to Stockholders
Not applicable.

Statement reconciling any significant differences between items shown in
filing and in any of above reports.
Not applicable.

Cost of service schedules for the test year and the proposed rate year.
Please see testimony of Harold Smith and supporting schedules. See
Table of Contents.

Rate Year.
The rate year is January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014,

Adjustments to Test year.
Please see testimony of Harold Smith and supporting schedules. See
Table of Contents.

Attestation of Financial Data
Included in Tab 4.



Item 2.9(a)
Response

Item 2.9(b)
Response

Item 2.9(c)
Response

Item 2.9 (d)
Response

Item 2.9 (e)
Response

Item 2.9 (f)
Response

Item 2.9 (g)
Response

Item 2.9 (h)
Response

Item 2.9 (1)
Response

Item 2.9 (j)
Response

Item 2.9 (k)
Response

EXHIBIT 2

Index and Responses in Compliance with Part 2

Cost of Service Schedules for test year and rate year.
Please see testimony of Harold Smith and supporting schedules. See
Table of Contents.

Workpapers supporting working capital allowance.
Not applicable.

Workpapers supporting allocations of cost of service amounts among
entities.
Not applicable.

Workpapers detailing the test year and rate year revenues.
Please see testimony of Harold Smith and supporting schedules. See
Table of Contents.

For each rate class, proposed rate change effects and copy of actual bill.
Please see HIS-20 and HJS-21. A copy of an actual bill is included at the
end of this Index.

Principal and Interest paid on Debt Service for Test Year and Rate Year.
Included at the end of this Index.

Schedule of Lease payments
Not applicable.

Adjustment Clause revenue analysis
Not applicable.

Rate year Municipal Tax Expense, and prior three years
Please see HJS-4 Analysis of Property Taxes, and HIS-4A Comparative
Schedule of Property Taxes.

Number of Employees and Overtime
Included at the end of this Index.

Summary of transactions with affiliated entities/funds
Included at the end of this Index.



EXHIBIT 2

Index and Responses in Compliance with Part 2

Item 2.9 (1) (1) balance sheet
(2) income statement
(3) statement of changes in retained earnings

Response Please see Exhibit 3 Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year ending
6/30/12 and 6/30/11 in Tab 9.

Item 2.9 ( m) Summary of rate case expense incurred and projected.
Response Please see HIS-7 Schedule of Regulatory Commission & Rate Case Exp.

Item 2.9 (n) Information for preceding five years
; (1) unaccounted for water
(2) loss on transmission of electricity or gas
(3) utility’s own use of water

Response (1) Please see Exhibit 1, Table E attached to Boyce Spinelli’s testimony.
(2) Not applicable.
(3) Included at the end of this Index.

Item 2.9(0) Summary of the status of compliance and reporting required by prior
Commission orders.

Response Providence Water is in compliance with all prior Commission orders. All

semi and annual reports have been filed to the best of our knowledge.



C00_2013_03_08_103509242.pdf http://192.168.10.15/reports/statement/C00_2013_03_08 10350924

5 [ e
o %O.Wden ce |Bill Date 3/812013
<=Waler !
{Account Number 308,
PO BOX 1456 {Payment Due Date Upon Receipt
FRUMUENGE, Ry gas0i-1as Service Location JEEPS\VIFT ST
| Total Amount Due $ 50.05 ¢

2180k8D00308L3000B0000005005000009L50000008 Amount Enclosed §

Make Check / Money Order payable
PROVIDENCE WATER, INCLUDE ACCOUNT

NUMBER OM CHECK | MONEY ORDER,

To pay by ACH, ga to weny.brovwater com. To pay by credit card, either go to www.provwater com or call 1-866-833-2560.
PLEASE RETURN TOP PORTION OF THES PAGE, RETAIN BOTTOM AND FOLLOWING PAGE FOR YOUR RECORDS.

F—Senviee e rBillFSummary—

i Account Number  SENEESS

{ Service Type Residential 8ill Date ; _ 3/8/2013
i Water Rate $2.488 : :

1 Usage Perlod 2/14/2013 - 03/07/2013
{ Meter Number 44956338 g i

j Meter Size &/8"

SalUicE ot | Previous Bill $40.40
| B SWIFT ST Payment Received $0.00
i

| PROVIDENCE RI 02904 Past Due Balance $ 40.40
{ Bil To

|

| TFFRECHARITE ST Current Charges

! R N R RSt

Consumption Charge - HCF Rata

Service Charge(s)

Regular service charge

Fire protection service charge
R Water Fund Charge

Billing Questions
(401) 521-5070

P

Emergency Service
{401) 521-6300

Total Current Charges $9.65

Business Hours
Monday - Friday
8:30 AM - 4:30 PM
! Summer Hours
Monday - Friday
8:30 AM - 4:00 PM . i

Total Due $ 50.05

interest of 1% per month will be charged on paynixents received 30 days after the billing date.

Website
WWW. provwater,.com

Conversions

1 CF (cu. ft.) = 7.48 Gallons
1 HCF = 100 CF = 748 Gallons !

| | ltem 2.9(e)

|
E
|
!
|
§
f
i
i
f i

lof2 /RT3 1035 A



C00_2013_03_08_103509242 pdf

. APProvidence
== Water

PO BOX 1458

PROVIDENCE, R 02801-1456

http://192.168.10.15/reports/statement/C00_2013_03_08 10350924

Account Number  «SiS088r

Bill To

IREERGSSR
RS Ty
RReWDEEE RS0

Service Location @@ SWIFT ST

Current Consumption

) - . . . #Days Read Dale Read Type Ieter Read HCF
This page has Billing and History Detail ONLY, 0211472013 Actual 95100
21 03/07/2013  Final 95272 1.72
For TOTAL DUE. please see Total Amount Due Totat HCF: 172
on FIRST PAGE of Billing Statement.

T JOIN THE NEW CUSTOMER — 7 = - T T e I
NOTIFICATION NETWORK., | ;
Get important waler information | i
and alers, sent directly to your | 2.5 ;
phone, celi or e-mail account. P 10.0 4
Visit www.provwater.com to sign | oy |
up and join the network for FREE! | 8 a9 |

! 50 4 !
IMPORTANT INFORMATION: P 1 [ I f [ i | i
LEAD IN DRINKING WATER | B i e e e e S ‘
Providence Water has found high S 5§ § 3 2 2 3 & g 2 T R =z R g
levels of lead in drinking water in S 2 2 g2 2 2 g ¢ « £ 2 2 g2 & d |
some homes., Lead can cause NN RN RN RN R R R RN e o o O |
serious health problems. i Read Date
Ensure lead-free water by | |
flushing & cold water faucet for 3 | |
minutes if your water has not ; #Days | Read Date Actual Usage
and the costwill be about a i 20 e 88800 | 5.00 134
penny. Save the flushed water | 30 02/09/12 89300 | 5.00 125
for watering plants or household 28 03/08/12 BS700 | 4.00 107 {
i 16 ol j
z;’fef‘s'zgi;ﬁf':jg;“;ealﬁssljygg et | 33 | o402 90200 | 5.00 13
cessa k4 i e Ziq 4547 cnman ‘0
tollets, washing machines, I 31 0511412 G0600 4.00 07
showers or bathtubs first. | a5 0615112 9100G | 4.00 {
However, for drinking or cooking, 1\ 31 0711612 92400 | 14.00 |
; always flush the water from that | 19 08/15/12 83100 | 7.00 {
' faucet for at least 30 seconds. ! f ' i
| 35 09/19/12 §3900 | 8.00 i
j 26 | 10152 a4100 | 200 50 ;‘
SAVE WATER AND MONEY! 31| 111512 94400 | 3.00 72 |
Shorten your shower by 1 or 2 ! 20 12414/42 94600 | 200
minutes and save up to 700 | . : ' F
gallons of water a month. For i = gi/1e/13 94900 | 3.00 8 1
more watsr saving lips, visit i 24 02714713 85100 | 2.00 52
www provwater.com, click on the | 21 03/07/13 852721 1.72 A1

News and Information drop-down l

menu, select "Facts”, and click P

"Asout Conservation”. | ¢
(]
|

20f2

1 HCF = 100 GF = 748 galions

The recommendad usage is 65 gallons per persorn per day. Divide
the gallons per day by the number of peaple in vour household to

determine your daily, per person usage

210117 1aAar A
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Time Period

Beginning of Test Year
End of Test Year

Estimated Rate Year
Fiscal Year

07/01/2009-6/30/2010
07/01/2010-8/30/2011
07/01/2011-6/30/2012

Rate Year
1/1/2014 -12/31/2014

PROVIDENCE WATER
Number of Employees and Overtime

Number of
Employees

261
247

264

Qvertime Amount

$811,305
$814,237
$832,163

Overtime Amount
$870,026

ST

TRy

TR

Pursuant to 2.9 (j) of Commission Rules of Practice and Procedure




PROVIDENCE WATER
Summary of Transactions with Affiliated Entities

Test Year Transactions:

City Services Billing from City of Providence : $839,167
Other Water Billings to City of Providence (see notg) N/A
Loans to/from 50

Accounts Receivable Balance:

July 1, 2011 June 30, 2012 March 13, 2013
Providence Hydrant Accounts $550,138.76 $694,447.23 $694,447.23
Providence School System $0.00 $0.00 $6,832
Other Providence Accounts $0.00 $0.00 : $243,396.12

Note: Not readily available. Involves numerous accounts. Providence Water does periodically extract the
accounts receivable balance to review with City personnel.

LS U RSO T L s

Pursuant to 2.9(k) of Commission Rules of Practice and Procedure




PROVIDENCE WATER

Consumption Period

07/06/2007
09/01/2008
09/19/2009
08/02/2010
09/02/2011

Pursuantto 2.9 {n) of Commission Rules of Practice and Procedure

i

08/31/2008
09/18/2009
08/01/2010
09/01/2011
08/31/2012

Utility Use of Water

Cubic Feet
Consumption (CF)

42,150
31,970
30,790
52,150
43,741

200,801

Hundred Cubic Feet
Consumption (CCHF)

422
320
308
322
437

2009

B LR i G e




Exhibit 3

CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND
WATER SUPPLY BOARD

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011



CITY. OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND
WATEB SUPPLY BOARD

TABLE OF CONTENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011
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& Braver.

Accountants & Advisors

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Diractors of
Providence Water Supply Board
Providence, Rhods Island

We have audited the accompanying statements of net assets of the Providence Water Supply Board (the
“Water Supply Board") (an enterprise fund of the City of Providence, Rhode Istand) as of June 30, 2012 and 2011,
and the related statements of revenues and expenses and changes in fund nat assets and cash flows for the years
then ended. These financial stalements are the responsibility of the Water Supply Board’s management. Our
raspansibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepied in the United Siaies of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in “Government Auditing Standards” issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial staiemsnts are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by managemant, as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.,

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Water Supply Board and do not purport io,
and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of Providence, Rhode Island, as of June 30, 2012 and 2011,
and the changes in its financial position, or, where applicable its cash flows for the vears then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrad to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Water Supply Board as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, and the raspective changes in its financial position

and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principies generally accepted in the United
States of America.

in accordance with "Government Auditing Standards”, we have also issued our report dated December 31,
2012 on our consideration of the Water Supply Board's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of iis
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agresments and other maiters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reparting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on

compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with “Government Auditing
Standards”, and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 2 through 5 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, aithough not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it o be an essential part of financial reporting in an appropriate operational,
econcmic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procadures, to the required supplementary
information in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of managemant about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information
for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not exprass an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or

provide any assurance.
Braver, PC J Riismtibisins
mor idence, Rhods island
Taunton
GEEBERBEr 31, 201255 South Main Street, Suite 100, Providence, R 02903 T401.4212710 F401.2745230 wwiv.thebravergroup.com
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LROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(An enterprise fund of the Clty of Providence, Rhode Isiand)}

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

The management of the Providence Water Supply Board (the “Water Supply Board”) offers readers of our

financial statements the following narrative overview and analysis of our financial activities for the years ended
June 30, 2012 and 2011, :

Financial Statements

Our financial statements are prepared using proprietary fund (enterprise fund) accounting that uses the same
basis of accounting as private-sector business enterprises. Under this method of accounting an economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting is used.

Revenue is recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred. The financial statements
include statements of net assets, statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets, and statements of
cash flows. These statements are followed by notes to the financial statements,

® The statements of net assets present information on the assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net

assels may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Water Supply
Board is improving or deteriorating.

* The statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets report the operating and
non-operating revenues and expenses of the Water Supply Board for the fiscal year with the
difference — the net income or loss — being combined with any capital contributions to
determine the net change in assets for the fiscal year. That change combined with the
previous year-end net assets total reconciles to the net assets at the end of the fiscal year.

» The statements of cash flows report cash and cash equivalents activity for the fiscal year
resulting from operating activities, non-capital financing activities, capital and related
financing activities, and investing activities. The net result of these activities added to the

beginning of the year cash balance reconciles to the cash and cash equivalenis balance ai
the end of the fiscal year.

(CONTINUED)




EOOVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOABD
(An enterprise fund of the Clty of Providence, Rhode Island)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

Condensed Financlal Information (in thousands)

Condensed financial information from the statements of net assets and revenues, expenses, and
changes in net assets is presented below.

2012 2011 2010

Current assels $ 39,753 $ 40,695 $ 49,147
Capital assets, net 266,247 254,291 235,100
Total assets _306,000 294,986 284,247
Current liabilities 12,469 12,780 17,235
Noncurrent liabilities 52,081 51,896 53,780
Total llabilities 64,550 64,676 71,015
Net assets: ;
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 213,758 201,281 179,800
Restricted 18 649 18,028 28,395
Unrestricted 11,001 5,037
Total net assets 5 g41 !45g $ 230,310 _a__gmggg_
Operating revenues $ 61,727 5 84,017 $ 54978
Operating expenses 37,404 34,674 39,447
Depraciation 12,191 11,380 11,421
Total operating expenses, including
deoreciation 49,595 48,054 50,868
Operating income 12,132 17,963 4,108
Nonoperating expense (1,192) (1,395) (943)
Capital grants and contributions 200 510 773
Increase in net assets $ 11140 §___ 17078 & 3.938
(CONTINUED)




EROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(An enterprise fund of the City of Providence, Rhode Island)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

Financiat Highlights

The Water Supply Board's net assets totaled $ 241 million at June 30, 2012. Total net assets increased by
$11.1 million, or about 5% from June 30, 2011.

During the year, the Water Supply Board had operating revenues that exceeded operating expenses by $12
millien. This is primarily due to the large commitment to the replacement of infrastructure included in water rates.

At June 30, 2012, the Water Supply Board's net assets totaled $ 241 million. Total assets were $306 million,
up § 11 million from last year's total assets of $ 295 million.

At June 30, 2011, the Water Supply Board's net assets totaled $ 230 million. Total assets were $295 million,
up $ 10.8 million from the prior year's total assets of $ 284.2 million.

The Water Supply Board's total operating revenues were $61.7 million at June 30, 2012, which decreased
from $64 million at June 30, 2011, The tolal cost of operating the water system, including property taxes and
depreciation, was $49.8 million. This resuited in an operating income of $12.1 million. Non-operating revanus
consists of interest and dividend income. Interest on long-term restricted debt is the largest non-operating expense,

followed by miscellaneous and other expenses. Non-operating expense for the fiscal year totaled ($1.2) million, with
capital granis of $.2 million. The total increase in net assets was $11.1 million.

The decrease in revenue in 2012 was attributable to a decrease in consumption based revenus. The

increase in expenses were a result of increases in chemical costs, pension contribution, insurance and depreciation
expense and an increase in bad debt expense.

The Water Supply Board's total operating revenues were $ 64 million at June 30, 2011, which increased from
$54.9 million at June 30, 2010. The total cost of operating the water system, including property taxes and
depreciation, was § 46 million. This resulted in an operating income of $ 18 million. Non-operating revenue consists
of interest and dividend income. Interest on long-term restricted debt is the largest non-operating expense, followad
by miscellaneous and other expenses. Non-operating expense for the fiscal year totaled ($1.4) million, with capital
granis of § .5 million. The total increase in net assets was $ 17.1 million.

The increase in revenue in 2011 was attributable to an across the board inctease in rates that was in place for ali of
2011, The decrease in expenditures in 2011 was a result of negotiated adjustments to salaries, the reduction of some
benefits, a reduction in property taxes and a reduction of bad debt expense.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assats

At June 30, 2012, the Water Supply Board had $ 266.2 million invested in various capital assets, inciuding
land, buildings and improvements, transmission and distribution rgservoirs, mains, services, hydrants and

appurienancas, machinery and equipment and construction work in progress. This amount represents a net increase
of $ 12 million, or 4.7%, over last year.

At June 30, 2011, the Water Supply Board had $ 254.2 million invested in various capital assets, including
land, buildings and improvements, transmission and distribution reservoirs, mains, services, hydrants and

appurtenances, machinery and equipment and construction work in progress. This amouni represents a net increase
of $ 19.2 million, or 8.2%, over the prior year.

(CONTINUED)




(An enterprise fund of the City of Providence, Rhode Island)

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

Major project expenditures Inciuded (in mililons):

Various distribution improvements, $0.1
Replace valves, $0.1

Replace fire hydrants, $0.5

Valve & Hydrant Assessment, $.5
Replace lead services, $1.5

Sludge Maintenance, $1.0

Geographic Info. Systems (GIS), $0.1
Replace water mains, $6.7

102" aqueduct improvements, $1.8
Sand Filters, $5.1 _
Electrical and process control upgrades, $0.1
CO? system, $0.3

Miog Leak Detection system, $0.6
Source Water Improvements, $0.3
Pump Station improvements, $0.7

* ¢ * P PP PSSP eSS

The Water Supply Board's fiscal 2013 capital budget includes projected expenditures of $29 million for
infrastructure and capital projects. The major projects are filter replacements and water main replacements, sludge
removal and disposal, Source Water Improvements and Treatment Plant system upgrades, GIS system, and land
acquisition. Other projects will be funded from bond proceeds available from bonds issued in prior fiscal years and
with restricted cash funding from rate revenues. The majority of infrastructure projects are financed on a pay-as-you-

go, cash basis. New capital additions, that benefit the ratepayers for many years, are paid for with debt financing on
an as neaded basis,

Debt

At June 30, 2012, the Water Supply Board had $ 52,5 million in bonds and notes outstanding versus $ 53
million in the previous year. This represenied a decrease of $ .5 million or .9%. $ 3 million in new debt was issued in
2012 to fund walershed land acquisition

At June 30, 2011, the Water Supply Board had $ 53 million in bonds and notes outstanding versus $ 55.3 million in
the previaus year. This represented a decrease of $ 2.3 million or 4.2%. The 1996 PPBA bond was refinanced in
MNovember 2010. No additional debt was issued in 2011.

Contacting Providence Water’s Flnancial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our customers, investors and creditors with a general averview of
the Water Supply Board’s finances and to show the Water Supply Board’s accountability for the money it receivas. if
you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Finance Director at the
Providence Water Supply Board, 552 Academy Avenue, Providence, Rt 02908.

(CONCLUDED)




EBOVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(An enterprise fund of tha City of Providence, Rhode isiand)

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 20711 (000's)

2012 2011
ASSETS
Current unrestricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) $ 3174 § 3948
Accounts recaivable, net of allowance for uncollectibla
accounts of $2,786 in 2012 and $2,378 in 2011 8,439 9,257
Accounts receivable - unbilled 4,828 4,752
Inventory 637 71
Other assets 479 487
Total current unrestricted assets 17,557 19,155
Current restricted assets (Note 2)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 16,770 17,215
Investments (Note 3) 4,474 4,304
Accountis receivable _ 952 21
Total current resiricted assets 22,196 21,540
Total current assets 39,753 40,695
Capitai Assets (Note 9)
Land 21,917 19,308
Building and improvements 60,740, 55,263
Improvements other than buildings 229,861 225,819
Machinery and equipment 28,002 27,239
Asseis under capital leases (Note 7) 13,846 13,846
Scituate Reservoir Project 18,682 18,682
Construction in progress 63,796 52,543
436,844 412,897
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 170,597 158,406
Total capltal assets, net 266,247 254,291
Total assets 306,000 294,986
(CONTINUED)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EBQVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(An enterprise fund of the Clly of Providence, Rhode Island)

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 (000’s)

LIABILITIES
Current llabliitles
Due to City of Providence General Fund (Noie 6) , 542 544
Accounts payable 819 1,021
Accrued expenses 1,880 2,216
Unearned ravenues 1,979 1,966
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) 3,602 3,521
8,922 9,268
Amounts to be paid from current restricted assets (Note 2)
Due io Water Resources Board 376 347
Accounts payable ' 3,171 3,165
3,547 3512
Total current liabilities 12,469 12,780
Non-current flabilities
General revenue bonds (Note 5) 48,887 49,489
Other post employment benefits (Mote 10) 3,194 2,407
Total non-current ilabliiltles 52,081 51,896
Total ilabiiities 64,550 64,676
NET ASSETS
Invested in caplital assets, net of related debt 213,758 201,281
Restricted . 18,649 18,028
Unrestricted 9,043 11,001
Total net assets $ 241,450 $ 230,310

. ————

(CONCLUDED)

The accompanying notes ara an integral pari of thesa financial statements.
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EHOVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOABD
(An enterprise fund of the City of Providence, Rhode Island)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 (000°s)

Operating Revenues
Charges for services:
Water sales (Note 1):

General customers
Other local water suppliers
Fire protection services

Maintenance charges and other revenus

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Saurce of supply
Pumping operations
Water treatment
Transmission and distribution
Charge for services provided by other City departments (Note 6)
Customer accounts and service
Administrative and general
Dapreclation and amortization
Property taxes - other local governments
Total operating expenses

Operating Income
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
interest income
Interest expense and other
Net nonoperating expenses
Capital Grants and Contributions

Change in net assets

MNet Assets, beginning of year

Net Assets, end of year

2012 2011
$ 41,457 $§ 42,266
16,777 17,301
1,104 2,060
2,389 2,390
61,727 64,017
1,932 2,183
790 871
6,980 6,038
4,024 3,578
1,522 839
2,179 2,829
13,554 12,080
12,191 11,380
6,423 6,256
49,505 46,054
12,132 17,963
204 34
(1,486) (1,429)
(1,192) (1,395)
200 510
11,140 17,078
230,310 213,232
$ 241,450

$ 230,310

The accompanying* noies ara an integral part of these financial statements.
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EROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARRD
(An enlerprise fund of the Clty of Providence, Rhode Island)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 (000’s)
2012 2011
Cash Fiows From Operating Actlvities
Cash received from customers $ 61559 § 61,563
Cash paid to vendors (23,243) (28,058)
Cash paid to employees (13,603) (12,776)
Net cash provided by operating activities 24,613 22,729
Cash Flows From Non-Capltai and Related Flnancing Actlvitles
Due toffrom other funds (2) 1,525
Cash Flows From Capital and Reiated Flnancing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets {24,1486) (30,571)
Interest paid on debt (1,486) (1,429)
Repayment of long-term debt {3,521) (3,345)
Proceeds from long-term debt 3,000 1,056
Capital grants 200 510
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (25,953) (33,779)
Cash Flows From Investing Actlvities
Purchase of investment securities (171) (1)
Investment income (loss) 294 34
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 123 33
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,219) (9,492)
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning 21,163 30,655
Ending : $ 19944 $ 21,163
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 3 3,74 § 3,048
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 16,770 17,215
$ 19944 $ 21,163

Reconcillation of Operating income to -
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activitles:
Operating income $ 12,132 § 17,963
Adjustments to reconcile operating incoma to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depraciation and amortization 12,191 11,380
Changes in assets and liabilities;
Accounts receivable (189) (2,511)
Inventories 74 140
Other assets 8 36
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 384 {4,300)
Uneamed revenue 13 21
Net cash provided by operating activitles $ 24613 $ 22729

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EBOQVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(An enterprise fund of the City of Providence, Rhode Island)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 (000’s)

1.

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Beporting antity

The Providence Water Supply Board, an enterprise fund of the City of Providencs, (the “Water Supply
Board”) was created in 1940 by Chapter 832 of the Public Laws of the State of Rhode Island. iembarship of the
Water Supply Board is comprised of four parsons appointed by the Mayor, who serve for four-year staggerad terms
and two City Council membars elected by the City Council who serve during their four-year City Council term. The
Finance Director of the City of Providence also serves as an ex-officio Water Supply Board member.

The Water Supply Board provides water supply services through metared sales in Providence and parts of
the surrounding communities of North Providence, Johnston and Cranston. The Water Supply Board also salls
water 10 othar local water supply systems on a wholesale basis. The Water Supply Board's source of watsr supply
is the Scituate Reservoir, located in the Town of Scituate, Rhode Island, and five tributary reservairs,

Significant accounting policies are as follows:

Bagsis of Presentation
The Water Supply Board is considerad an enterprise fund of the City of Providence (the “City”). The

operations of the Watar Supply Board are accounted for with a separate sat of self-balancing accounts organized
on a Proprietary Fund typs (Enterprise Fund) basis.

Enterprise Funds are used to account for oparations (a) that are financed and oparated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises whare tha intent of the governing body is that the costs (including depreciation) of
providing goods and services to tha general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through
user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues eamed,
axpenses incurred, and/or net Income is appropriate for capital maintenancs, public policy, management control,
accountability, or other purposes.

The Water Supply Beard utilizes the accrual basis of accounting, under which ravenues are racognized
when eamsd and expenses ara recognized when incurred.

Regulations and Oparation

The Water Supply Board is subject, as to rates, and other matters, to the regulatory authority of the Siate
of Rhode Island Public Utilitias Commission (PUC).

Cash aquivalents

The Water Supply Board considers all highly liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of thras
months or less, when purchased, to be cash aquivalants.

Invastments

The Water Supply Board accounts for investments at fair values which are astablishad by quoted markat
pricas.

Inventory

~Inventory, consisting of materials and supplies, is valued at the lower of average cost or markat using the
first-in, first-out method.

(CONTINUED)
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EBOVIDENGE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(An enterprise fund of the Clly of Providence, Rhoda Island)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 (000's)

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital assets, depreciation and amortization

Capital assets owned by the Water Supply Board are stated at cost. They are definad as assets with an
initial cost of more than $3,000 and an estimated useful lite in excess of 1 year. Depreciation and amortization is
providad over the estimated useful livas using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Building, source of supply structurss, and improvemants 5-75 years
Improvemants other than buildings 3-75 years
Equipment 3-50 years

Dapraciation expense is not reflected for construction in prograss until such time as it is placed in sarvice.

Assats under capital leases are amortized under the Water Supply Board's normal depreciation policies for similar
asseis.

Restriciad funds for construction of agsels

Rastricted funds for construction of assets rapresent unexpended revenua bond proceads obtainad
specifically for construction of water facilities. Thase funds are included in restricted assets.

Capital contributions

_ Capital contributions consist of property and equipment paid for by customers for water installations. Once
the installation Is complete, the proparty and equipment transfers to the Water Supply Board at fair value.

Revenues, operating revenues and expenses

Revenues include amounts billed and unbilled to all customers, including those customers outside the City
of Providence, Rhode Island. All billed charges are based on rates approved by the PUC. Revenues for unbillad
amounis to general customers are estimated basad on billing amounts subsequent to year-end. The Water Supply
Board distinguishes operating ravenues and expenses from non-operating. Operating ravenues rasult from
charges to customers for water and related services. Operating expenses include the cost of operations,
maintenance, sales and service, administrative expenses and depreciation. All revenues and expensas not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating or capital contributions.

Propristary fund accounting

The Water Supply Board has implemented Statement No. 20 of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB), “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Propristary Funds and Othar Govemmental Entities that
use Proprietary Fund Accounting.” This Statement provides guidance on the applicability of accounting
pronouncements from other standard setting organizations. Under the Board's election, it must apply all GASB
pronouncements and the following pronouncements issued befora November 30, 1989 unless they contradict
GASB pronouncements: Statements and Interpratations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board, Accounting
Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulleting of the committes on Accounting Procedures.

Concentration of credit risk

The Water Supply Board's financial instruments that are exposed to concenirations of credit risk consist
primarily of accounts raceivable. Exposure fo losses on receivables is principally dependant on each customer's
financial condition. Concentration of credit risk with respect to recaivables is limited due to the large number of

customars. The Waler Supply Board monitors its exposure for cradit losses and maintains allowances for
anticipated lossas,

(CONTINUED)
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PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(An entarprise fund of the City of Pravidence, Rhode Island)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 (000’s)

2‘

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Uss of sstimates

The praparation of the financial statemenis, In conformity with accounting principles generally accapted in
the United Siates of America, requires. management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reportt_ad
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabliities as of the date of the financial

statements and the reported amounts of ravenuss and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Coi nsate sence

Employees accumulate sick lsave hours for subsaquent use or for payment upon retirement. Sick leave

and vacation vest may be carriad forward into the following calendar year, but not to exceed 135 days and 30 days,
raspectively.

Vestad sick leave and accumulated vacation leave are recorded as expenses and fiabilitiss as the benefils accrue
o amployees,

RESTRICTED ASSETS

The State of Rhode Island enacted the Public Drinking Water Protection Act of 1987 {the "Act") that
ampowers suppliers of public drinking water te levy a surcharge (the “surcharge”) of one cent ($0.01) per hundred
gallons of water for all customers. The surcharge has been amended saveral times since 1987. The last incraase
was on July 1, 2002, when the surcharge increased to $0.0292 per hundred gallons of water for ali customers. In
addition to the increass, the Water Supply Board will retain 36.1% of the surcharge in its Water Quality Protection
fund, remit 57.0% to the State Water Resources Board and ratain 6.9% for general oparations. The funds collected
in the Water Quality Protection fund are to be expended in the following manner:

1) ataminimum, 55% of the funds are to be spent for the acquisition of land orland rights or physical
improvements to acquired land to protect the quality of the raw water of the water supply system;

2) 35% may be used to acquire a fee simple interest or a conservation restriction that diractly
- protects the quality and safaty of the public drinking water supply; and 3) 10% may bs used by the
supplier for any purpose relating to its operations,

The rastricted investments are pooled with the cash and cash -equivalents and investmants of other funds

maintained by the Clty of Providence. The eamings from investments ara allocated in propoition to each fund's
balance.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS
The following is a summary of cash and investments:
Fair
Value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,474
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 16,770
Equity Mutual Funds 4,474

Total $ 24418

(CONTINUED)
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of Providence, fihode Island)

HOVIDENCE WATE
(An enterprise fund of the City

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 (000's)

3.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Responsibility for custodial cradit risk of deposits and investments and interest rate risk and risk gnd
conceniration of investments rests with the City; accordingly separate disclosure is not possible. The City's

financial statements should be read to determine the associated risks of the Water Supply Board's deposits
and invesimenis.

PENSION PLANS

Substantially all employses of the Water Supply Board participate in the Employees’ Retirement
System of the City of Providence (the “Plan”), a defined-benefit, single-employer plan. Disclosures about this
plan, as a whole, are presented in the City of Providence, Rhode Island's basic financial statements. As of
June 30, 2012 and 2011, the City recorded a liability for unpaid pension contributions of $149,478 and
$136,115, respectively. Separate actuarial information related to the Water Supply Board employees is not

available. Accordingly, only disclosures about the Water Supply Board’s participation in the Plan are
presented herein.

Water Supply Board employees participating in the Plan are eligible to retire at age 55 if hired prior to
July 1, 2004, at age 60 if hired betwesn July 1, 2004 and June 30, 2009, at age 62 with 10 years of service if
hired on or after July 1, 2009 or at any age after 25 years of service if hired prior to July 1, 1995, or at any age
after 30 years of service if hired on or after July 1, 1995. The total retirement allowance is equal to an
annuity, which is the actuarial equivalent of accumulated contributions at the time of retirement, plus a
pension which when added together either; 1) equals 1/40 of final compensation for each year of total service
up to 20 years and 1/50 of final compensation for each year of service in excess of 20 years if hired prior to
July 1, 1996 or; 2) equals 1/50 of final compensation for each year of total service cradited if hired on or after
July 1, 1996. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by City ordinance.

The Water Supply Board's allocation of the actuarial required contribution and amount contributed for
the year ended June 30, 2012 wers $2,556 and $2,315, respectively. The Water Supply Board's allocation of
the actuarial required contribution and amount contributed for the year ended June 30, 2011 wers $2,589 and
$1,642, respectively. The employer and employsas contribution rates are approximately 25% and 23%,
raspeclively, for both 2012 and 2011. _

The historical schedules of employer codtributions and funding progress for the Plan are included in
the City of Providence, Rhodas island’s basic financial statements.

LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term liability activity for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

2012
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds $ 53010 $ 3000 $ (3521) $ 52480 $ 3,602
Total bends 53,010 3,000 (3,521) 52,489 3,602
Total long-term liabilities $53,010 $ 3000 $(3,521) $52489 $ 3,602

(CONTINUED)
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{An enterprise fund of the City of Providence, Rhode Island)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 (000’s)

5.

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

2011
Baginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds - $55299 $ 1056 $ (3,345) $ 53,010 $ 3,521
Total bonds 55,299 1,066 (3,345) 53,010 3,521
Total leng-term liabilities $55299 $ 1058 $ (3,345) $53,010 $ 3,521

The following is a summary of bonds and notes outstanding at June 30, 2012 and 2011;

June 30, 2012

Interest
Description Rate Balance
Revenue bonds:
Safe Drinking Water Bonds (CWFA FY2002) 2.97% 3 1,444
Scituate Resarvoir Project (PPBA FY 2011) 5.42% - 882
Safe Drinking Water Bonds (CWFA FY2005) 2.25% 2,863
Safe Drinking Water Bonds (CWFA FY2008) 2.85% 32,376
Safe Drinking Water Bonds (CWFA FY2010) 2.21% 12,124
Safe Clean Water Bonds (CWFA FY2012) 3.35% 3,000

$ 52,489

June 30, 2011

Interest
Description Rate Balance
Revenue bonds:

Safe Drinking Water Bonds (CWFA FY2002) 2.97% $ 1,563
Scituate Reservoir Project (PPBA 1996) 5.40% 996
Safe Drinking Watar Bonds (CWFA FY2005) 2.25% 3,500
Safe Drinking Water Bonds (CWFA FY2008) 2.85% 33,702
Safe Drinking Water Bonds (CWFA FY2010) 2.21% 13,249
Safe Clean Water Bonds (CWFA FY2012) 3.35% =

$ 53,010

(CONTINUED)
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ERQVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(An enierprise fund of the City of Providence, Rhode Island)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 (000’s)

3.

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Scheduled principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

ARRA Principal
Principal Forgiveness Interast Total
Fiscal year ending June 30:
2013 3 3602 % (263) $ 1,507 & 4,846
2014 3,816 (283) 1,477 5,010
2015 3,916 {289) 1,379 5,006
2016 3,080 {295) 1,288 4,073
2017 2,331 {108y 764 2,987
2018-2022 12,218 {587) 5,120 16,749
2023-2027 13,220 (684) 3,114 15,650
2028-2032 10,120 (659) 751 10,212
2033 188 (24) 3 167

3 52,489 & (3,192) $ 15403 § 64,700

In-Substance Defeasance Prior-Years

In prior years, the Water Supply Board has defeased various bond issues by creating separate
irrevocable trust funds. New debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used to purchase U.S.
government securities that were placed in the trust funds. The investments and fixed earnings from the
investments are sufficient to fully service the defeased debt until the debt is called or matures. For financial
reporting purposes, the debt has been considered defeased and therefore removed as a liability from the

financial statements. As of June 30, 2012, the amount of defeased debt outstanding but remaved from the
Water Supply Board's statements was $3,655.

TRANSACTIONS WITH CITY OF PRO VIﬁENCE, RHODE ISLAND

The City of Providence performs various services for the Water Supply Board inciuding certain
accounting, personnel and cash management services and working capital support. The total billing to the
Water Supply Board for services performed amounted to $839 for each of the years ended June 30, 2012 and
2011, respectively. This amount is established by the City, approved by the Water Supply Board and
ultimately approved by the PUC. The Water Supply Board also provides services to various City funds and
departments, the charges for which have been included as revenue in the accompanying financial
statements, Included within the Due To City of Providence General Fund balance on the statement of net
assets are the related balances due for these services, pension and post employment benefit payments which
at June 30, 2012 and 2011 totaled $301 and $544, respectively.

(CONTINUED)
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EROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
{An enterprise fund of the City of Providence, Rhode Island)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 (000’s)

8.

LEASES

The assets and liabilities under all capital leases are recorded at the present valus of the minimum
lease payments. Amortization of these asseis charged to expense amounted to $185 for each of the years
ended June 30, 2012 and 2011. Summary of book value is as follows:

2012 2011
Cost $ 13,846 § 13,846
Accumulated amortization (3,622) (3,437)
Book vaiue 3 10,224 § 10,409

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Risk Managament

The Water Supply Board has a complete comprehensive insurance program protecting all facilities,
employeas and liability claims,

The Water Supply Board is subject to various claims and litigation that arise in the ordinary course of
its operations. Legal counsel and management are of the opinion that the Water Supply Board's liabilities in

such cases, if decided adversely to the Water Supply Board, would not materially affect the financial
statements. '

Union Contract

The labor force of the Water Supply Board, with the exception of management, is covered by a union
contract which is effective for the period January 1, 2011 to June 30, 2015.

Contingent Liabili ity of Providence per Rhode island G.L.

A law passed in 2003 (R.L.G.L. § 39-3-11.3 and § 46-15.3-21) required an annual payment by the Water
Supply Board fo the City of Providence of 5% of the Board's gross revenuas for the fiscal years ending Juna 30,
2004, 2005 and 2006. The law specifically provides that this payment shall not be included as part of the Water
Supply Board's rates for these years. These payments would total approximately $2,500 per year.

The Water Supply Board has no material funds (other than revenues from rates) from which to make these
payments and thersfore has not made the payments. Further, since the payments can not be made from rats

ravenues the Board balieves it is not liable for any amount to the City and therefore has not accrued an amount for
the potential liability,

No action has been taken by either the City of Providenca or the Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission
concaming this matter.

(CONTINUED)
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A 5 PPL)
{An enterprise fund of the City of Providence, Rhode Isiand)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 (000’s)

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)
Lead Service Replacement Proaram

The Water Supply Board is raquired to test for lead and copper in its water. In August 2008, 16 of
100 samples taken throughout the water system tested for trace lead levels higher than 15 parts per billion
(ppb). The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations mandate specific actions that need to ba
taken by water utilities when more than 10% of test samples exceed the 15 ppb lead level. While there is no
detectable lead in the drinking water that leaves the Water Supply Board's treatment plant, some older homes

with lead pipes and lead connactions to the water main in the street can show trace amounts of lead in the
waler.

Due to the results of the testing, the Water Supply Board was required by the U.S EPA, through the
Rhode Island Department of Health (RIDOH), to engage in public education sfforts related to lead in water,
and to replace a minimum of 7% (1800 services per year) of the 25,600 active lead services in its system by
September 30, 2007, and 7% each year thereafter. The Water Supply Board axceeded the mandate of 7%
per year. On April 30, 2010, RIDOH informed the Water Supply Board that the excess installations could be
applied to the next fiscal year to meet that year's mandate. Therefore, the Water Supply Board placed the
Lead Service Replacement (LSR) Program in hiatus and redirected its efforts towards water main
replacements for 2011. Again in 2012, RIDOH approached the Water Supply Board, and on June 12, 2012, a
Consent Order was executed betwsen both entities which granted the Water Supply Board a stay on the
mandated yearly 7% replacements for 2012. Again, the Water Supply Board focused its efforis on water main
rapiacemsnts. At the momant, the 7% requirement holds true for 2013.

in July 2007, the Water Supply Board embarked on a Lead Service Replacement (LSR) program and
engaged an engineering firm for a period of three years to provide assistance in managing the LSR program,
and contracted with three construction firms for two-ysar periods to perform the actual replaceament work. The
' initial contract with the engineering firm was extended to July 2011 and a three year contract was exacuted
with the original engineering firm with a completion date of June 30, 2014. Concurrently, the intent is that the
associated construction contracts would have a duration of two years and have a minimum of two contractors.

The mandated LSR Program is still viable and all requirements such as public education, notifications,
sampling/testing, reporting, eic are still in place for any lead service replaced. The only exception is that the

Water Supply Board was allowed a stay by RIDOH for the 7% goal of 1800 lead service replacements per
year. _

As mentioned, the Water Supply Board has a stay for the 1800 lead servica replacements for EPA FY 2012
that ended September 30, 2012, The Board is not sure if there will be continuation of the stay through EPA
FY 2013, or whether the lead service replacements requirement will be reinstated. Water main replacement

contracts will continue in 2013, and if the lead service replacement stay is exiended, the level of water main
replacements will be increased.

Since the inception of the LSR Program in 2007, as of November 2012, approximately 10,100 lead services
have been replaced of the original lead service inventory of 25,600 by the LSR Program, various water main
replacement projects, and in-house Water Supply Board forces.

Should the LSR Program’s 1800 service replacements be reinstated for 2013 and beyond, the intent would be
to have 2-3 construction contractors perform the work under a two year contract spanning 2013 and 2014,
The total cost of the replacements and the associated enginsering effort is estimated to be $15 million.

(CONTINUED)
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BROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
{An enterprise fund of tha Cly of Providence, Rhode Island)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 (000's)

g, CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of the activity in capital assets as of June 30, 2012:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Scituate Reservoir Project
Canstruction in progress
Total capital assets not being depraciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Assets under capital lease

lL.ess accumulated depraciation for:
Buildings and improvemants
Improvementis other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Assats under capital lease

Total capital assets baing depreciated, net
Total capital assets, net

Balance

June 30, 2011

Additions  Disposals

Balance

June 30, 2012

$ 19305 $ 2612 §$ - % 21917

' 18,682 - . 18,682
52,543 25,572 14,319 63,796
90,530 28,184 14,319 104,395
55,263 5,476 2 60,739
225819 4,042 " 229,861
27,239 764 . 28,003
13,846 - . 13,846
322,167 10,282 . 332,449
33,812 6,000 . 39,812
97,049 5,104 » 102,243
24,108 813 - 24,921
3,437 184 - 3,621
158,408 12,191 5 170,597
163,761 (1,909) . 161,852

_$ 254,291

$ 26275 § 14,319 § 266,247

{CONTINUED)
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{An enlerprise fund of the Cliy of Providence, Rhode Isiand)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 (000°s)

CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The following is a summary of the activity in capital assets as of June 30, 2011:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2010 Additions  Disposals June 30, 2011

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land ' $ 13574 § 5731 § - % 19,305
Scituate Reservoir Project 18,682 - - 18,682
Construction in progress 43,103 9,440 - 52,543
Total capital assets not being depreciated 75,359 15,171 - 90,530
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 48,637 8,626 - 65,263
improvements other than buildings 217,730 8,089 - 225,819
Machinery and equipment 26,554 685 - 27,239
Assets under capital lease 13,846 - - 13,846
Total capital assets being depreciated 308,767 15,400 - 322,167

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 28,557 5,255 - 33,812
Improvements other than buildings ' 91,880 5,160 - 97,049
Machinery and equipment 23,336 772 - 24,108
Assets under capital lease 3,253 184 - 3,437
147,026 11,380 - 158,406
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 158,741 4,020 - - 163,761
Total capital assets, nat $ 235100 $ 19191 § . § 254,291

(CONTINUED)
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PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
{An enterpriae fund of the City of Providence, Rhode Island)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011 (000°s)

10,

11.

POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Water Supply Board follows GASB Statement No. 45 “Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Posternployment Benefits Other Than Pensions”.

The Water Supply Board's Post-Retirement Benefits Program of the City of Providence (the
“Program”) is a defined-benefit, single-employer post-retirement health and life insurance program. The
Program provides lifetime health care and life insurance benefits 1o substantially all retired employees and
their spouses. Disclosures about this program, as a whole, are presented in the City of Providencse, Rhode
Island’s basic financial stataments. As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the City recorded a liability for unpaid
post-retirement contributions of $135,200 and $98,408, respectively. Separate actuarial information related to

the Water Supply Board employses is not available. Accordingly, only disclosures about the Water Supply
Board’s participation in the Plan are presented herain.

The Water Supply Board's allocation of ihe actuarial required contribution was $1,229 and $442 was
centributed for the year ended June 30, 2012.

The Water Supply Board's allocation of the actuarial required contribution was $1,476 and $419 was
contributed for the year ended June 30, 2011,

The uhpaid balance of the actuarial required contribution at June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011 of
$3,194 and $2,407, respectively, is included in non-current liabilities on the Statement of Net Assets.

The historical schedules of employer contributions and funding progress for the Program are included
in the City of Providence, Rhode Island’s basic financial statements.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain 2011 financial statement amounts have been reclassifled to conform to the 2012
prasentation. There is no change in the reported total net assets.

(CONCLUDED)
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